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To make appropriate decisions about information and storage, companies must
understand their choices. We illuminate these choices through StorageTek’s
Information Lifecycle Management™ (ILii) framework and address a pressing business

issue — how to manage the flood of information, reduce costs and operate more efficiently.

Through the lens of ILM, customers see ways to manage their information according to

its value — an approach that helps them achieve balanced storage environments.

Balanced storage environments take into account four activities: store, manage, replicate

and integrate —the building blocks of ILM. All are intrinsic to complete storage solutions.

We design, deliver and support complete storage solutions so our customers can

work with one company to achieve their storage and business objectives.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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"We're achieving excellent financial results through the

application of best practices inside the company and a focus
on revenue growth opportunities in the marketplace. With
our strong cash position, we can continue to invest for the

future — in sales and service expertise, research and
development, operating excellence and market expansion.

Our effective business model gives us privilege to do s0."

ROBERT S. KOCOL, CORPORATE VICE PRESIDENT
& CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER



CHAIRMAN'S LETTER

PATRICK J. MARTIN, CHAIRMARN, PRESIDENT & CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER




oear fellow investors

2002 was a defining year for Storagelek. We competed in a down market and
completed the year with gains in many areas. With the broadest product and
services portfolio in the industry, solid partnerships and alliances, sales momentum
and financial success, we're poised to invest and grow. I'm pleased with our results,
and | believe that we can sustain our drive to become the storage experts who
provide "worry-free" storage solutions to our customers.

We maintained our focus on increasing profitable revenue growth and unleashing
trapped profitability. We met our objectives of extending our storage solutions
through our services business; retaining and growing existing customers; obtaining
and retaining new customers; and expanding partnerships and alliances. Our
employees did an outstanding job in 2002.

In comparison to many of our peers, Storagelek performed at a higher level, and our
stock price performed significantly better than major indices. Our shareholders saw

their investments gain value.

THE MARKET IN WHICH WE PARTICIPATED

We continued to feel the effects of the slowdown in the
global economy. Information that companies needed to store,
however, continued to grow as much as 50 to 70 percent by
some accounts. But, price declines in the cost of storing that
information caused & shrinking market. Skilled human
resources, needed to help manage growing amounts of
information, were scarce. Budgets were flat or down. In
spite of these issues, Storagelek had a solid 2002

Due to pressures caused by government regulations, disaster
recovery/business continuance planning, explosive e-mail
growth and other factors, most of our customers save all of
their information. They can't always be sure what information
they'll need and when they'll need it. These circumstances
play to our strengths because we can help them store their
information, organize it, protect it and find it.

2002 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Our company is organized into two operating segments: storage
products, which includes tape, disk and networking solutions,
and storage services. Together, the segments provide the
integrated solutions that our customers need. We're working

on a unifying concept that will help our business groups work
together more cohesively and, as a result, make it easier for
our customers to choose, install and manage the right storage
solution. We call this concept Information Lifecycle
Management (ILM). Mare about ILM fater in this letter.

Our global services revenue grew 11 percent thanks to expanded
offerings, broader geographic coverage in Eastern Europe, Latin
America and Asia, and more efficient service delivery. Our
storage networking revenue increased by 31 percent, and disk
revenue increased by 27 percent. We continued to maintain
market share in tape and automated tape solutions.




Storagelek's revenue in 2002 was $2.04 billion, compared
to $2.05 billion for 2001. Our net income increased by 64
percent to $110 million and our cash balance improved by
more than $200 million to $658 million. We have minimal
debt. By the end of 2002, StorageTek had delivered 10
consecutive year-over-year quarters of earnings increases,
partly because of new product introductions and process
efficiencies in sales, services and administration.

MAINTAINING DISCIPLINE

In 2002, we focused on operating efficiently, enhancing our
product portfolio and unleashing trapped profitability through
disciplined cost control. The progress we made in these
areas helped us to be more successful in the marketplace.

We introduced Six Sigma to Storagelek to reinforce our
intention to run an efficient, disciplined business. While we
made progress in reducing order-to-cash and prospect-to-
order cycles, along with impraving services billing, these

activities remain prigrities.

We launched more than 25 new products and delivered

20 product enhancements over the past two years. With
BladeStore, which we introduced in October 2002, we
developed a new type of disk storage and added to our
reserve of intellectual capital. Previously, conventional disk
has been the storage device of choice to ensure the fastest
retrieval time, but disk is expensive, especially compared to
tape. BladeStore bridges the gap between high-performance
disk and low-cost tape, and it provides fast access to
information — not quite as fast as conventional disk — but
at a much lower price point.

We eliminated excess manufacturing space and inventory,
resulting in a 44 percent reduction in manufacturing facilities
and a 46 percent reduction in net inventory since early 2001.
We were able to leverage supplier relationships by
consolidating some of our manufacturing activities. Through
implementation of supplier logistics centers, we increased
supply chain reliability and consistency and, as a result,
reduced delivery times to our customers. Finally, by outsourcing
certain manufacturing processes, we reduced time to market
and met our stringent customer service objectives.

Throughout our company, we are finding ways to operate
more efficiently, more profitably and in tune with customer

requirements.

LEVERAGING PARTNERSHIPS AND ALLIANCES

In 2002, we expanded the number of partnerships and
alliances that are so integral to our delivery of total storage
solutions. We formalized a corporate alliances function with
dedicated technical, business and management resources to
identify and synchronize opportunities.

Qur relationship with LSI Logic matured. To bring our first
series of disk products to the open systems market, LS
contributed development, engineering and manufacturing
services. Storagelek provided sales, marketing and service
activities. BladeStore includes StorageTek engineering and
manufacturing, along with an LSI controller. Together, we
achieved exceptional results and deepened our commitment
to a highly successful development/marketing alliance.

To fortify the reseller partner channel, we added four world-
class value-added distributors, improved "doing business with
Storagelek” logistics and balstered certification programs.

In our global partner channel {original equipment
manufacturers, health care partners and systems
integrators), we added a significant number of health care
partners and increased revenue associated with health care
solutions by more than 70 percent. More health care
partners will help us take advantage of the opportunity
created by the U.S. government’s Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act (HIPAA) deadline in April 2003. HIPAA
requires lifetime patient record keeping and retrieval
capability. Imagine the storage opportunities associated with
every X-ray, CAT scan and doctor visit.

StorageTek provides the hardware, software and consulting
services to make it far easier for health care providers to stors
and retrieve patient information electronically for years to come.

We also created a long-term alliance with EDS by outsourcing
a portion of our information technology operations and support,
along with some of the basic global services call center
functions. StorageTek supports automated tape equipment and
services in several EDS data centers.

All of our partners and alliances — in technalogy, sales,
development/marketing, systems integration and supply —
contributed to our success in 2002.




BECCMING THE STORAGE EXPERTS

The economic forecast remains uncertain for 2003 and
beyond. We see many, if not all, of the past year's trends
continuing. While this economic environment will likely make
2003 a challenging year for StorageTek, it also opens doors
for us because we can offer solutions that address our
customers' greatest storage challenges.

As we mave forward and execute the next phase of our
corporate strategy, we expect to be recognized worldwide as
the storage experts. Storagelek's Information Lifecycle
Management {ILM) should help us achieve this status. The
foundations of ILM are the business decisions customers
need to make about their information and the changing value
of information over time. Consider the lifecycle of a telephone
bill. The likelihood is high of a customer making an inquiry
within a day or two of receiving the bill. The likelihood of an
inquiry after 90 days is almost zero. The telephone company
must answer an inquiry very quickly during the first day or
two. After 80 days, the information must still be available but
not as quickly. Most companies currently treat all data the
same and store it on expensive conventional disk — & waste
of money and resources. We beligve that new information
should be stored on different devices than aging information,
resulting in greater efficiency, and our range of storage
options atlows customers to achieve this result.

Helping our customers solve the e-mail challenge is
particutarly satisfying. A typical corporate employee receives
an average of 70 e-mails a day, many with attachments.
Multiply that by hundreds or thousands of employees. That's
just one company. The amount of information that must be
stored is staggering. In addition, many of our customers must
comply with government regulations, or find information
contained in e-mails to respond to legal inquiries.

The age of an e-mail or the kind of information it contains
should determine where it's stored. Usually, as information
ages, it becomes less valuable. At some point, the useful life
of information decreases dramatically, and that's when it
should be stored on the lowest cost device.

Our solutions for health care, telecommunications and e-mail
management are examples of ILM in action. The broadcast
industry offers another ILM opportunity because broadcasters
increasingly recognize the value of storing video assets in
digital form. Regardless of the industry, we work with our
customers to design solutions that help them manage their
information reliably throughout its lifecycle, on the most cost-
effective devices that provide the required retrieval times.

We're one of only a few companies in the industry that can
offer customers complete solutions: disk, tape, software,
networking and, through our global services group, ensure that
everything works together within the customers' environments.
We believe our complete solutions give us a strong competitive
edge and make us our customers' trusted vender. We manage
information. Our competitors manage devices.

This approach also means that our customers won't be
penalized for keeping all of their data. In fact, when customers
choose ane of aur solutions, they buy anly the storage they
need. Qur solutions lower their total cost of storing, managing
and retrieving information. Because many aspects of our
solutions are automated and virtualized, our customers discover
that it takes less time and effort to manage the overwhelming
amount of information that comes their way every day.

The concept of managing information according to its
business value and useful life appeals to everyone we talk to
about ILM. With ILM, we have a flexible framewaork to solve
serious business issues. We can't imagine a better way to
run our company than to align our husiness and offerings in a
way that creates mutual value for us and for our customers.

IMVESTING FOR THE FUTURE

We anticipate a challenging but rewarding year ahead. ILM
aligns us so that our market-directed activities are integrated
in a way that makes sense to our customers. By viewing our
product/services portfolio through the ILM lens, we see
many ways to extend our offerings with technology that
allows the whole of our “worry-free” solutions to be greater
than the sum of the parts.

As we continue to invest in our business ta increase customer
and sharehalder value, we expect to sustain our focus on
operational excellence that, in tum, strengthens our market
presence. We anticipate revenue and earnings growth in 2003.

Meany thanks to our customers, partners, shareholders and,
especially, to our employees, whose dedication and
commitment are evident every day. We have an inspired team
of people ready and able to help StorageTek grow and prosper.

(ot i

PATRICIK J. MARTIN
CHAIRMAN, PRESIDENT & CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
MARCH 2003
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Be the storage experts who deliver easy-to-uss,
industry-leading, innovative storage solutions to
manage and protect business-critical information.

Best Places to Work
5280: Denver's Mile High Magazine

Innovator of the Year
AeA (American Electronics Association}
Mountain States Council

Firm of the Year
American Cancer Society
State of Colorado, Rocky Mountain District

Top 100 Hot Stocks
Bloomberg Personal Finance

InfoTech 100
BusinessWeaek

WHAT WE DO

Steragelek designs, menuiactures, sells and maintaing
data storags Rarcware a7d seftwars. These cusiomer-
specific selutiens may includs parmer-supplizd
egmpenants. Our customars use frese seivtions to stere
&nd rerievs infermetion elsctronieaily instead of en
paper. The herdware steres the infermatden in cigial ferm,
on tBpe or dlsk. The seftware serves two Imparem
purposes. First, softwars keeps track af the information so
custemers always knew in which clecren’s Mle drewes”
ihelr informadon is stored. Secend, sefiware Moves
Information frem ons dev ee to enather o make backup
COPIES oF (0 Siors i on cifierent tees of medis t provide
varying access fmes and price polnis.

Platinum 400
Forbes

America's Most Admired Companies
No. 1 Two Years in a Row

Computer Peripherals category
FORTUNE

The Best Performers
The Wall Street Journs!

Most Improved Company
The Wall Street Journal

A Great Place to Work
U.S. Black Engineering and Information Technology

Best Companies for Working Families
Colorado Parent

W are one of enly a few companies in te ndusiry That eam
offer complete storage sclutiens: avmeied s, disk,
sterage networking end e storage services that malke
sveryiving warlk together (a efficient and cest-aiaeive ways.

We plonsersd aviomaled tepe selrdons mors than 18 years
age, and we sl have majedty market share. Virwalzeten
tzehnelogy, whish Steragelek inveniad in the eary 1980s,
has besems an industry standerd. With BladeSters, which
the cempany launehed in la SterageTak ereated
&n enifraly new tyse of high periermancs, lower cost

isk storage that flls & long-standing gap.
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For mars then 30 yeers, SteregeTek has been recognized
as the date center's ally and rusted adviser. Qur
custemers stay with us yeer after year becsuss we
previds ts teels they need to recuce costs and simplify
an Inereasingly cempiex pant of their businesses.
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information lifecycie management



"I've heard very powerful and famous people over the past 30 years
pronounce that tape Is dead, and it's still here and still as strong as ever,
and | believe it will continue to be strong 10 years frem now."

MICK ALLEN, VICE PRESIDENT, STORAGE RESEARCH, GARTMERGROUP




Companies today save practically all of their data. With government

regulations, litigation, disaster recovery/business continuance planning

pressures and generally higher levels of business scrutiny, our customers

just can't know what information might be important in the future.

THE FLOOD OF INFORMATIOWN

Industry experts agree that an average company's
information is growing between 50 and 70 percent per year.
Companies require an enormous amount of storage capacity
to save every e-mail, letter, sales report, proposal, medical
record, telephone bill, bank statement, stock transaction,
price list, inventory summary, shipping report and so on.
Video surveillance images are collected nearly everywhere
we go — gas stations, parking lots, elevators, major highway
intersections — and they must be stored. Satellite images
provide information for climate studies, geological research
and urban planning. Storage opportunities abound.

INFORMATION LIFECYCLE MANAGEMERNT

That's where StorageTek's Information Lifecycle
Management (ILM} comes in. It's our way of helping our
customers solve one of their most pressing strategic
business issues: how to manage the flood of information,
yet lower cost and improve the efficiency of their storage
operations. ILM should be a solid foundation on which to
build our growth. ILM is based on two concepts: the
business decisions that customers need to make about their
information and the changing value of information over time.
There's no good reason to store less valuable, aging
information on the same storage device as more valuable,
new information — especially when a range of devices
exists, and that range provides secure data storage,

acceptable data recall times and different price points.

LIFECYCLE OF INFORMATION
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The actual implementation of ILM is relatively straight-
forward. Where we believe we have the greatest
opportunity initially with ILM is to help our customers
begin to assign value to their data. Then, various kinds of
data can be stored on different but appropriate devices
throughout the lifecycle. For example, video surveillance
images are useful for a short period of time. If no crime,
accident or injury occurs, the images can be deleted.
E-mail, however, is generally stored for a long time and
managed carefully. Some industries are required by law
to maintain their e-mail records. Telephone records must
be stored for seven years. Health care records, at least

in the U.S., must be stored for patients’ lifetimes.

Many companies choose to store everything on
conventional disk. Although disk provides nearly
instantaneous recall of information, it is the most
expensive form of storage. Does all information need to
be recalled instantly? No. Storing and managing aging
information on conventional disk wastes capital, time and
natural resources. Conventional disk is also an inefficient
storage medium, with as much as 60 percent not used,
based on "write to disk" practices. Therefore, companies
that store everything on disk are forced to buy more and
more disk for day-to-day use, for backup copies, for

disaster recovery copies and so on. it's a vicious cycle.

With ILM, we seek to help our customers design solutions
that move information from one device to another. This
approach ensures that all information is stored safely at
the appropriate price point, taking into consideration the
preferred service level, or recall time. It makes sense. It

helps our customers achieve their business objectives.

StorageTek offers online, inling, Nearline® and archival
storage options to help our customers store information
efficiently and cost effectively throughaut its lifecycle.

®
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information tifecycle management

LM IS RIGHT AND TIMELY

Why is StorageTek uniquely positioned to be successful Backup windows — the amount of time allotted to

with ILM? We're one of only a few companies that can backing up the day's data - are growing smaller. Data
offer solutions covering the entire spectrum of storage centers are under mounting pressure to back up
choices. We recommend the right solution for the right everything, yet maintain around-the-clock operation.
data. Our competitors recommend the storage devices >>0ur storage networking solutions and products such
they have to sell. as our BladeStore disk array accelerate backup without

modification of existing software programs.>>
Why is the timing right for ILM? Market conditions are

forcing companies to reconsider the ways in whichthey  ILM OFFERS A LOGICAL WAY TO YIEW STORAGE

manage and store their information. Companies must act  The building blocks of ILM are store, manage, replicate and

now or drown in the flood of information. integrate. These four elements, we helieve, help us organize
storage-related activities logically, give us a way to talk to

Budgets are flat or declining. Our customers must use our customers about ILM and assure our customers of a

their assets more effectively. >>0Our solutions should proper cost-benefit balance in managing their storage.

help them do that by moving aging data to less

expensive devices and freeing up existing capacity.>> An easy way to think of the value that [LM delivers is "the
right data on the right device at the right time in its lifecycle

Skilled human resources are scarce. Companies can no at the right price at the right service level.”

longer hire the storage professionals they need. >>0ur

solutions, which include a high level of automation, make it

easier to manage more and more data with fewer people.>>

. . . . . .. information
Conventional storage architecture is highly inefficient, lifecycle
. . management [ |

with as much as 60 percent of storage capacity unused. {

>>0ur virtual tape and disk solutions can increase the / \
/ J S

amount of usable storage space on a given device to / % Y
| ®00ga0 ° i

nearly 100 percent.>> Dot 2
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INTEGRATE

"Today's data centers are complex and data protection is critical. But all data is not created equal
and all companies are not equal. Storagelek has expanded its family of data protection solutions to
match data protection capabilities with data value and custemer investment priorities. As they

deliver these solutions over the coming months, Storagelek will be a company to watch."

JOHM MCARTHUR, GROUP VICE PRESIDENT, STORAGE RESEARCH, IDC




DEVYELOPING (DEAS TO DELIVER VALUE

As ILM storage architecture and solutions mature,
we expect to offer customers more ways to simplify
storage management, lower cost and reduce the
visibility of storage in their operations. Here are some
ideas we are working on:

>»>STORE

Consolidate multiple storage devices into one.

Consolidation occurs by integrating disk and tape
capabilities to deliver more function in a single device,
increasing disk and tape cartridge capacity and
virtualizing tape and disk. For example, the current
standard for tape cartridge capacity is 200 gigabytes.
In our laboratory, we have succeeded in placing one
terabyte, or five times more data, on a single cartridge —
a direction that may ultimately reduce overall cartridge
count and cost. By consolidating multiple devices into
one, we would help our customers save maoney, space
and time by giving them the ability to store more
information in the same footprint.

S>MAMAGE

Automate so storage devices act like one versus many.

Automation extends the number of devices and the amount
of storage that can be managed by one person. We are
developing software and leveraging partner technology
that, if developed successfully, should help our customers
manage data more efficiently and move it from cne device
to another based on policies, usage and time. Multiple
storage devices acting like one reduces complexity and
makes storage management easier for our customers.

ILKi BUILDING BLOCKS

providing flexible storage to meet every performance level

ez | making decisions about data and devices

fEAREG | placing data in multiple locations

prEEre| applying services and storage networking

>>REPLICATE

Unify disparate systems/allow seamless movement between media.
Seamless backup and data protection result from
technology that allows diverse systems to work together
behind the scenes. "Open” technology, supported by
extensive testing with our partners and in our interoperability
laboratories, has been one of our strengths and specialties
for years. Open storage systems, compared to proprietary
systems, provide our customers with much more flexibility
and investment protection.

S>INTEGRATE

Add services that support the growing complexity of data centers.
Complexity drives up cost and management time. Our
objective is to simplify the lives of our customers by offering
ways to manage and moniter storage systems, manage
multi-vendor systems and tailor data protection solutions.
The result? Greater efficiency and lower cost of operation.

SQOLYIMG CUSTOMERS' BUSIMESS ISSUES

We're putting our best minds to work on ILM. It makes
sense as a way to prioritize our significant research and
development budget, define our products and services
portfolio and execute a customer-focused strategy.
We're educating our employees about ILM. Our sales
force, our front line to introduce ILM to the market, is
receiving intensive training. Customers are responding
positively to ILM. By helping our customers make
decisions about their information and maximize its value,
we help them solve pressing business issues related to
efficiency and cost. The market is receptive. The time is
right. We're inspired and united by the momentum of ILM.

"Storagelek understands the storage marketplace and the challenges facing IT executives and is

well positioned to assist its customers in coping with these challenges to their joint benefit."

EDWARD #1. BRODERICK, PRINCIPAL ANALYST, ROBERT FRANCES GROUP
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DELIVERING WHOLE SQLUTIONS

Global Services is the glue that binds together our
hardware and software offerings into complete,
integrated solutions for our customers. This business
segment has two areas of focus — Enterprise
Maintenance and Support Services, and Professional
Services. With Enterprise Maintenance and Support
Services, we provide hardware and software support
and management for products of StorageTek and other
storage vendors. This service allows our customers to
centralize control of the complexity inherent in today's

diverse, networked storage environments,

Professional Services helps our customers solve
their storage management and integration issues in a
cost-effective manner. We do this through specially
tailored assessment, design, implementation and
management offerings, as well as solutions centered
on e-mail management, health care, broadcast and
video surveillance. We're focusing on helping our
customers make decisions about their data in light of

{nformation Lifecycle Management.

GLOBAL SERVICES

[:l Enterprise Maintenance and Support Services
[:] Professional Services

Global Services maintains a presence worldwide.

To support expansion and growth, Global Services
completed in 2002 the roll out of its new service delivery
model, including powerful tools to help our customer
service personnel keep track of, diagnose and resolve
problems. We alsa added capabilities to provide
around-the-clock remote monitoring and management
services to customers who want to improve storage

management efficiency.

As we continue to focus on improving productivity
associated with storage service delivery, we expect to
maintain margins in a price-competitive marketplace.

At the same time, we will continue to drive growth by
attracting new customers and by expanding our offerings
to existing customers. The expanded offerings will give
our customers more options to reduce costs and simplify
data center management, and they should strengthen our

relationships because we will deliver more value.
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PROVIDING SEAMLESS SOLUTIDRS

Customers support wholeheartedly our commitment to
make storage easier to manage, less costly and less
visible in their operations. Our technology partners —

a group that grows and changes to keep up with
changing storage opportunities — help us accomplish
this abjective. Qur joint efforts are shaped by our mutual
goal of providing customers with seamless solutions

that are tested, supportad and affordable.

To provide open solutions that inter-operate with the
equipment of other vendors, we conduct testing and
demonstrate proofs of conceptin labs located in
Colorado, France and Japan. Our partners also conduct
extensive testing using either our facilities or their own.
By investing regularly in our facilities, we maintain
state-of-the-art capabilities to validate and document

the solutions we deliver.

When customers' hardware or software stops working,
they can't afford the time it takes to sort out which
company is responsible. To ensure seamless maintenance
and support, we develop cooperative support agreements

with our partners. As a team, we resolve issues quickly.

/)

In 2002, we formalized the StorageTek corporate alliances
function to support our technology partnerships with
dedicated technical, marketing and management
resources. Our joint development, marketing and selling

initiatives will help us accelerate results.

The delivery of ILM solutions requires a mix of our
technology and partner technology to design better
products that are valuable to our customers, to
manufacture them more quickly and to get them to
market sooner. Qur agile, responsive partners boost our
ability to maneuver in the marketplace and to offer our

customers new time-saving and cost-reducing ideas.

"CNT and StorageTek have partnered for decades to
provide siorage nefworking soiutions as our customers
have grown from 'how to connect,’ to ‘how to protect’
and now "how to improve the efficiency of the business.'
Qur partrership continuss to skengthen as we help cur
customars achieve these objectives and reduce costs.
Our ultimate objective, of course, is affordable disaster
recovery to ensure business continuity.”

TOW HUDSCR, PRESIDEXT, CED AND CHAIRMAN IF THE BOARD, CXT

"When data storage leaders such as VERITAS and StorageTek come together in strong partnershiz,
our companies and our custemars win. VERITAS and Storagelek have a long history of interoperability

and collaboration that provides data availability, protection and performance for our customers.”

ARICHAEL L SCTNICK, VICE PRESIDENT, PARTNER SALES, VERITAS
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“Storage networks remain top-of-mind for our customers because they increase operational efficiency and
provide a distnct compstitive advantage. We look forward to continuing our long-standing relationship

with Storagelek as we build the increasing levels of SAN intelligence and functionality that help

Storagelek customers simplify the managsment of their storage environments.”

1]

JAY (DD, VICE PRESIDEXT OF PRODUCT [MARIETING, BROCADE
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REACHING QUT GLOBALLY

Qur customers can buy directly from us or indirectly
through our partners. The indirect channel consists of
value-added distributors and resellers, global partners
(original equipment marufacturers, health care partners

and systems integrators) and international distributars.

DISTRIBUTION CHANNMNELS

Direct

Indirect

il

- Value-added Distributors
- Value-added Resellers
- Global Partners

- International Distributors

C [w) a

We took several steps in 2002 to maximize our sales

opportunities:

s>Focused the direct sales force on a smaller number of key
accounts with a greater emphasis on solutions selling

>»Supported the indirect channel to extend market coverage

>>Developed an associate sales executive program to augment
account management and uncover new opportunities

>>Piloted a teleweb program

>>Established a dedicated Global Services sales force

>>Improved "doing business with StorageTek” logistics
far partners

>>Added four world-class value-added distributors

s>Increased the number of global partners in health care

>>Added coverage in 14 countries through new

international distributors

We completed a teleweb pilot to see if we could
capitalize on this method of outreach. Teleweb combines
telemarketing with the Web, which is used to deliver
information and product demanstrations. We had three
objectives: {1) to obtain sales leads; (2) to extend
coverage for existing accounts; and (3) to sell products.
We generated more than $24 million in opportunities,
which we are pursuing, and added 1,200 new accounts.
Because of these results, we are adding a permanent

teleweb initiative to support our sales efforts.

As we continue to improve the quality and scope of our
distribution system, we expect to increase the share of
business we have with current customers and reach

greater numbers of potential new customers.




"Storage is a key focus for our value-added resellers
{VARs). With StorageTek, we can offer open, end-to-end
solutions that help our VARs solve many customer
storage issues, including disaster recovery/business
continuity, with excellent price/performance.
StorageTek’s commitment enables us to create partner
programs to drive sales growth."

JEFF BAWOL, VICE PRESIDENT & GEMERAL MANAGER, ENTERPRISE
SOFTWARE & STORAGE BUSINESS UNIT, AYNET-HALLMARK

"Our partnership with StorageTek is a natural relationship
because, for both companies, storage soluticns are our
business. We believe that IL¥ is the right message to
allow our VAR partners to deliver and implement
StorageTek products that solve information management
problems. We recently attended the StorageTek sales
kickoff and it's clear that the products, stratevgy and
energy are there to take StorageTek to new levels. Bell
Microproducts is proud to be part of the StorageTek channel.”
MICK GANIO, PRESIDENT, BELL MICROPRODUCTS

"Over the past four years GE Access and StorageTek
have partnered to support the value-added reseller
channel. Together we grew sales by 60% in 2002, with
an emphasis on disk and open systems tape products.
And this growth was done at a lower cost to both partners.
It is this mutual benefit that makes our partnership
continue to strengthen.”

WILL SUMMERS, VICE PRESIDENT,
ENTERPRISE SOLUTIONS AND LLC, GE ACCESS

“For a number of years, Siemens Medical's U.S. Image
Management Division has had a very successful OEM
agreement with StorageTek. Working togather, the
companies have been able to provide storage solutions
to the health care industry. These solutions enable
customers to cost effectively meet diagnostic imaging
data storage requirements, ensure that data is secure,
and recall information easily."

THORAS K. RIESENBERG, VICE PRESIDENT,
IMAGE MANAGEMENT, SIEMENS MEDICAL SOLUTIONS USA

"Sun is committed to helping our customers extend the
value and power of their tape library investments.
Working closely with StorageTek on a just-in-time delivery
system allows us to continue delivering superior service
to our customers, while lowering their storage TCO."

MARK CANEPA, EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT,
NETWORK STORAGE, SUN MICROSYSTEMS INC.

"We choose partners that are world class in every way,
and StorageTek certainly meets our requirements.
Storagelek is a vital part of the solutions we offer on
our ClearPath and ES7000 enterprise server platforms.
The StorageTek account team functions as part of our
sales team so we can give our customers more expertise,
better service and, ultimately, more value.

SCOTT VOGEL, VICE PRESIDENT,
NMORTH AMERICAN SALES, UNISYS CORPORATION
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Storage opportunities are abundant across all
industries because companies are faced with a flood

of information and the chalienges of managing it.

Through ILM, we will help our customers quantify
the value of their information, then make decisions to
ensure that the information is stored safely at the

appropriate price point, with acceptable retrieval times.

With ILM, supparted by new product and storage
service offerings, we will continue our role as ally
and trusted advisor to data centers. We will

become the storage experts.
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Key:
O — StorageTek offices (listed on next page)
@ — StorageTek international distributors:

Argentina
Bahrain
Bosnia
Botswana
Buigaria
Chile
China
Colombia
Croatia
Cyprus

Czech Republic
Dominican Republic

Ecuador
Estonia
Egypt

Greece
Hong Kong
Hungary
india
Indonesia
israel
Jordan
Kazakhstan
Kenya
Kuwait
Latvia
Lebanon
Macedonia
Mauritius
Moldova
Montenegro

Morocco
Namibia
Nigeria
Oman
Panama
Peru
Philippines
Poland
Portugal
Puerto Rico
Qatar
Republic of
South Africa
Romania
Russia
Saudi Arabia

Slovakia
Slovenia
Taiwan R.O.C.
Tanzania
Thailand
Tunisia
Turkey
Uganda
Ukraine
United Arab
Emirates
Venezuela
Yemen
Yugoslavia







Argentina
Buenos Aires
Australia
Adelaide
Brisbane
Canberra
Melbourne
Perth
Sydney
Austria
Vienna
Belgium
Brussels
Brazil
Brasilia
Curitiba

Rio de Janeiro
Sao Paulo
Canada
Calgary
Edmonton
Halifax
London
Montreal
Ottawa
Quebec
Regina
Toronto
Vancouver
Winnipeg
Chile
Santiago
China
Beijing
Guangzhou
Shanghai
Denmark
Copenhagen
Skanderborg
Finland
Helsinki
France
Aix-En-Provence
Cesson Sevigne
Creteil

La Madeleine
Lyon

Nantes

Paris
Strasbourg
Toulouse
Germany
Berlin
Bremen
Dresden
Dusseldorf
Eschborn
Hamburg
Hannover
Karlsuhe
Koln

Langen
Wolfsburg-Lehre-Flechtorf
Leipzig

United Kingdom

Ascot
Leverkusen Coventry
Mannheim Edinburgh
Muenchen Manchester
Nurnberg Woking
Saarbrucken United States of America
Schwalbach Birmingham, AL
Stuttgart Huntsville, AL
Vellmar Montgomery, AL
Waldorf Little Rock, AR
Hong Keng Phoenix, AZ
Hong Kong Tucson, AZ
India Emeryville, ca
Bangaiqre Fullerton, CA
Chennaf Los Angeles, CA
Mumbai Sacramento, CA
New Delhi San Diego, CA
Dreﬂan.md Santa Clara, CA
Dublin South Coast Metro, CA
Italy Walnut Creek, CA
Assago Colorado Springs, CO
Bologna Englewood, CO
Roma LoneTree, CO
Torino Longmont, CO
Japan Louisville, CO
Nagoya Thornton, CO
Osaka Westminster, CO
Tokyo East Hartford, CT
Korea Washington, DC
Seoul Baca Raton, FL
Luxembourg Hollywood, FL
Luxem?ourg Jacksonvilie, FL
Malaysia Maitland, FL
Selangor Darul Tallahassee, FL
Mexico Tampa, FL
Monterrey Atlanta, GA
Mexico City Norcross, GA
New Zealand Des Moines, IA
Auckland Boise, ID
Wellington Chicago, IL
Norway Lombard, 1L
Nygaardstangen, Bergen Rockford, 1L
Oslo Springfield, L
Poland Fort Wayne, IN
Warsaw_ Indianapolis, IN
Puerte Rico Overland Park, KS
Ponce Topeka, KS
Singapore Wichita, KS
Singapore Lexington, KY
Spain Louisville, KY
Barcelona Metairie, LA
Madrid Southborough, MA
Sweden Walitham, MA
Gothenburg Elkridge, MD
Stockholm Hunt Valley, MD
Switzerland Southfield, Ml
Basel Minneapolis, MN
Berne Clayton, MO
Laus§nne Columbia, MO
Meyrin-Geneva Springfield, MO
Opfikon/2Zurich
Taiwamn
Taipei
The Netherlands
Vianen

@

St. Louis, MO
Charlotte, NC
Greensboro, NC
Morrisville, NC
Omaha, NE
Mountainside, NJ
Pine Brook, NJ
Albuquergue, NM
Albany, NY
Amherst, NY
NewYork, NY
Pittsford, NY
Plainview, NY
Syracuse, NY
Cincinnati, OH
Cleveland, OH
Columbus, OH
Moraine, OH
Union Town, OH
Midwest City, OK

Tulsa, OK
Portland, OR
Camp Hill, PA

Conshohocken, PA
Harrisburg, PA
Pittsburgh, PA
West Columbia, SC
Brentwood, TN
Memphis, TN
Austin, TX

College Station, TX
Dallas, TX
Houston, TX

Hurst, TX

San Antonio, TX
Salt Lake City, UT
Glen Allen, VA
Norfolk, VA
Roanoke, VA
Vienna, VA
Bellevue, WA

West Allis, W)
Nitro, Wy




report of management

We are responsible for preparing the consolidated financial statements and monitoring the Company's system
of internal accounting contrals. The system of internal accounting controls, reviews performed by our

corporate internal audit staff and oversight by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors are key elements
in ensuring that the consolidated financial statements are prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. The consolidated financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers

LLP independent accountants, whose report on the consolidated financial statements appears herein.

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT TEAM

ROGER C. GASTON MARK D. ROELLIG JILL F. KENNEY ROY G. PERRY JEFF HODGINS MICHAEL R. MCLAY MICHAEL YATH
CORPORATE VP VICE PRESIDENT CORPORATE VP CORPORATE VP VICE PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT &
HUMAN RESOURCES GENERAL COUNSEL WORLDWIDE MARKETING GLOBAL SUPPLY CHAIN, EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT U.S/CANADA SALES & SERVICE, GENERAL MANAGER
& SECRETARY & STRATEGY MANUFACTURING, LOGISTICS ~ TO THE CEQ & WORLDWIDE GLOBAL CHANNELS & EUROPEAN QPERATIONS
& QUALITY PROCESSES SALES INITIATIVES STRATEGIC ALLIANCES

@




We have prepared the consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. In our opinion, these statements reflect all adjustments necessary for the fair

presentation of Storage Technology Corporation's financial position and results of operations.

e B, Locot

PATRICK J. MARTIN ROBERT S. KOCOL
CHAIRMAN, PRESIDENT & CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CORPORATE VICE PRESIDENT & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
January 22, 2003 January 22, 2003

ANGEL P. GARCIA PIERRE J. COUSIN ROBERT S. KOCOL HEATHER MATZKE-HAMLIN ~ THOMAS M. MAJOR GARY D. FRANCIS
CORPORATE VP VICE PRESIDENT & CORPORATE VP & DIRECTOR VICE PRESIDENT & CORPORATE VP &
GROWTH MARKETS & GENERAL MANAGER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER INTERNAL AUDIT GENERAL MANAGER GENERAL MANAGER
GLOBAL SERVICES STORAGE NETWORKING DISK BUSINESS UNIT AUTOMATED TAPE SOLUTICNS

BUSINESS UNIT

@

PATRICK J. MARTIN
CHAIRMAN, PRESIDENT &
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER




forward-locking statements

Certain statements, projections and forecasts contained herein regarding StorageTek's future
performance and financial results, future products, and business plans constitute "forward-looking
statements" within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These
forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of words such as "may," "will," “should,"

"expects,’ "'plans,” "anticipates,” and "believes.” There are a number of risks and uncertainties that

could cause StorageTek's actual results to differ materially from those projected.

Some of these risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, StorageTek's ability to
develop, manufacture and market new products and services successfully; the effect of product
mix and distribution channel mix on our gross margins; our ability to continue to increase
productivity; customer acceptance of new technologies and standards; competitive pricing
pressures; rapid technological changes in the markets in which we compete; our ability to
attract and retain highly skilled employees; our ability to protect and develop intellectual property
rights to manufacture existing and new products, and deliver new and existing services without
infringing upon the rights of others; our reliance on certain sole source suppliers; potential
delivery delays from sub-contractors, and increased lead time in ordering parts and components
for our products that could result in reducing our control over delivery schedules and affect our
ability to fulfill customer orders in a timely manner; general economic conditions in the United
States and worldwide; and other risks'described in StorageTek's Annual Report on Form 10-K,
Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, and Current Reports on Form 8-K that are filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission (SEC) and which are available on the SEC's Web site.




UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1334

For the fiscal year ended December 27, 2002
or

[J TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SEGURITIES EXCHANGE ACT of 1934

For the transition peried from fo

Commission file number 1-7534

STORAGE TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 84-0593263
(State or other jurisdiction of {I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification Number)
One StorageTek Drive, Louisville, Colorado 80028-4309
{Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code 303-673-5151

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on which Registered
Common Stock, $0.10 par value New York Stock Exchange

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
Nene

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to
such filing requirements for the past 90 days. [ Yes [ No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to
the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part Wl of this Form 10-K or any
amendment to this Form 10-K. [

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). [X] Yes [ No

The aggregate market value of voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant was $1,497,200,755 based on the last reported sale price of the
common stock of the registrant on the New York Stock Exchange’s consolidated transactions reporting system on June 28, 2002, the last business
day of the registrant’s most recently completed second fiscal quarter. For purposes of this disclosure, shares of common stock held by persons who
hold more than 10% of the outstanding comman stock and common stock held by Section 16 officers and directors of the registrant have been
excluded in that such persons may be deemed to be "affiliates’ as that term is defined under the rules and regulations promulgated under the
Securities Act of 1933, This determination is not necessarily conclusive for other purposes.

As of February 28, 2003, there were 107,591,024 shares of common stock of the registrant outstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The registrant intends to file a definitive proxy statement pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 within 120 days of its
fiscal year ended December 27, 2002. Portions of the registrant’s definitive proxy statement for its annual meeting of stockholders to be held May 21,
2003, are incorporated by reference into Part Il of this Form 10-K.




PART |
[TEM 1. BUSINESS

All assumptions, anticipations, expectations, and forecasis contained in the following discussion regarding our business, fulure
products, business plans, financial resulls, perfoermance, and fulure events are forward-locking siatements within the meaning of
the Private Securilies Litigalion Reform Act of 1995. Qur actual results may differ materially because of a2 number of risks and
uncertainties. Some of these risks are defailed in ltem 7, “MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS QF OPERATIONS—FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS,” and elsewhere in this Form 10-K.
Forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of words such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “expects,” “plans,”
“anticipates,” “helieves,” “eslimates,” “predicts,” “intends,” “potential,” “continue,” or the negalive of such lerms, or other
comparable words. Forward-looking stalements also include the assumptions underlying or relating to any such slatements. The
ferward-looking slatemenis contained in this Form 10-K represent a goed-faith assessment of our future performance for which
management believes there is a reasonable basis. We disclaim any obligation to update the forward-looking statements
contained herein, except as may be otherwise reguired by law.

GENERAL

Storage Technology Corporation (StorageTek or the Company) was incorporated in Delaware in 1969. Our principal executive offices
are located at One StorageTek Drive, Louisville, Colorado 80028, telephone (303) 673-5151.

Storage has been our only business for more than 30 years. We design, develop, manufacture, and market a broad range of storage
solutions for digitized data, including business continuity and disaster recovery solutions. These solutions are designed to be easy to
manage and aliow universal access to data across servers, media types, and storage networks in both the mainframe and
open-systems environments. We are an innovator and global leader in virtual storage solutions for tape automation, disk subsystems,
and storage networking.

We provide products and services to a broad range of customers, including large muttinational companies, midsize and small
businesses, universities, medical institutions, and governmental agencies. Our customers encompass a broad range of industry
sectors around the world, including financial services, retail sales, healthcare, broadcasting, telecommunications, transportation, and
a variety of manufacturing industries.

We market our products and services to end-user customers through our direct sales organization and through our indirect channel
partners, including original equipment manufacturers (OEMs), value-added distributors (VADs), value-added resellers (VARs), and
other distributors.

We maintain a presence in many major cities of the warld. We operate sales and service offices throughout the United States and
Canada, as well as throughout various international regions, including Europe, Asia-Pacific, and Latin America. U.S. operations
accounted for approximately 51% of our total revenue in 2002, and international operations accounted for approximately 49%.

OUR STRATEGY

Our vision is to be the storage experts who deliver easy to use, industry-leading, innovative storage solutions to manage and protect
business critical information. We intend to realize our vision of becoming the storage experts through Information Lifecycle
Management (ILM), our view of an adaptive storage environment that dynamically balances information’s changing value with the cost
of managing it over time.

Today, most businesses don’t quantify the value of their information. Because storage device costs are steadily declining, there has
been no perceived need to re-evaluate storage costs to align with information’s value. However, we beligve escalating information
growth and changing business conditions are requiring businesses to reconsider how they manage and store their information.

We work to help our customers manage information according to its value, reduce complexity, and optimize storage device utilization.
ILM may assist in this effort by giving our customers the tools to balance their storage costs with information’s changing value. It is
designed to help customers make the right information available when and where it is needed, all at the right cost. By applying the ILM
building blocks described below, customers may be able to achieve a proper balance in managing their storage infrastructures.

The ILM framework consists of the following four building blocks:
= Store—Providing flaxible storage to meet every performance level
o Manage—NMaking decisions about data and devices
o Replicate—Placing data in multiple locations
o Integrate—Applying services and networking




We provide a comprehensive range of storage solutions that protect our customers’ information assets across industries, applications,
and information fife cycles. Customized storage strategies include a variety of storage devices and retrieval times to achieve the right
level of data availability at the right cost. Proven tape, disk, storage integration, and software solutions are designed to be open and to
integrate easily into the most data-intensive situations, helping to improve productivity in heterogeneous environments. Advanced
virtual storage solutions allow our customers to expand their storage options while containing costs and floor space use. Superior
scalability protects our customers’ storage investments and assures a growth path with minimal disruption.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

We are organized into two reportable business segments: storage products and storage services. Information concerning revenue and
gross profit for each of our business segments is found in ltem 7, “MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS,” and in Item 8, “NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,” of this
Form 10-K, which information is incorporated by reference into this Item 1. All of our assets are retained and analyzed at the corporate
level and are not allocated to the individual segments.

STORAGE PRODUCTS

Within storage products, our principal products are divided into three classifications. tape products, disk products, and network
products, in each case including related software.

Tape Products

Our tape products historically have generated a significant portion of our product revenue. These products are engineered to provide
reliable, cost-effective storage of digital information and consist principally of the following:

o Automated tape libraries. Our L-Series automated tape librarigs range from the L20, with up to 2 tape drives and 20 tape
cartridge slots, to the L5500, with up to 80 tape drives and 5,500 tape cartridge siots. L-Series libraries are used primarily in
open-systems environments and support a wide variety of tape drives. These libraries provide significant flexibility to the
customer because they can be easily installed, scaled, and upgraded.

The PowderHorn® 9310 automated tape library is our largest-capacity library, with two robotic hands and up to 80 tape drives
and 6,000 tape cartridge slots. It is a high-capacity, high-performance system for use in mainframe and open-systems
environments.

o Jape drives. The T9840 series tape drives are designed to optimize access speed and are ideal for transaction-intensive
applications. The T9940 series tape drives are designed to optimize capacity and are ideal for archiving, record retention, and
disaster recovery applications. The 79840 series and T9340 series tape drives are used in both the mainframe and
open-systems environments and can be attached by SCSI, ESCON, and native Fibre Channel. We also sell mainframe and
open-systems tape media, Quantum tape drives, and Linear Tape Open (LTO) tape drives.

o Virtual tape solutions. The Virtual Storage Manager™ (VSM) system is a virtual tape product that provides customers with an
intelligent software-driven data storage management solution. It is designed to maximize tape utilization, free up floor space,
and optimize batch processing. VSM uses a disk buffer and virtual tape technology to optimize access time, throughput, and
physical media and transport use, which result in significant savings for the customer. Itis currently avaitable for the mainframe
environment.

Disk Products

Our disk products are designed to maximize disk capacity utilization and provide fast access to business critical information, scale to
customer storage requirements, and support storage area network (SAN) implementations. Our principal disk products include the
following:

o V~Series. The V2X Shared Virtual Array™ {SVA™) subsystem is a virtual disk storage subsystem designed for both the
mainframe and open-systems environments. The V2X utilizes a virtual architecture that permits customers to use 100% of their
disk storage capacity, saving both time and money. The V2X facilitates rapid data restoration and maximizes application and
system availability.

Our Virtual Power Suite™ software, which is offered in conjunction with our SVA products, is designed to provide virtual
duplication and significantly reduce central processing unit and channel utilization costs associated with data movement.

o D-Serigs. Qur D-Series disk products are designed for open-systems environments and are offered through a strategic
alliance with LS! Logic Storage Systems (LSI). The D280 disk subsystem is the newest D-Series disk product. It allows
customers to efficiently and effectively consolidate their open-systems storage and is designed for high performance in
bandwidth-intensive applications like video streaming, medical imaging, and seismic processing. Our D-Series disk products



also include the D178 disk subsystem, a midrange-class storage solution, and the D173 disk subsystem, a low-range-class
storage solution.

o B-Series. We introduced our BladeStore disk subsystem in October 2002. BladeStore is a cost-effective disk storage solution
designed for open-systems environments. It utitizes Advanced Technology Attachment (ATA) disk drive technology to offer
customers enterprise-class reliability and availability, extreme storage density, and scalable capacity at an affordable price. We
believe that BladeStore will complement enterprise-class disk by driving down prices and will complement tape with faster
access.

Networls Productls

Our storage network products provide a total integrated SAN solution to our customers by enabling cross-media, cross-platform, and
cross-vendor accessibility. Our principal storage network products include the following:

o StorageNet® 6000 (SN6000) storage domain manager. The SN6000 provides network-based virtualization that enables
open-systems hosts and applications to share multiple tape storage devices that appear to be directly attached to each host.
The SN6000 enables seamless, scalable, and highly efficient management of tape storage resources, allowing customers to
more effectively manage their data.

o Networking hardware. Qur wide range of Fibre Channel connectivity devices allows our customers to leverage all of their digital
assets. We provide or resell leading world-class products including Fibre Channel switches and multi-protocol storage routers
for SAN solutions.

STORAGE SERVICES

We provide a broad portfolio of storage services to help our customers maintain, support, and manage their storage infrastructures
while reducing their total cost of ownership. Our storage services offerings include the following:

o Enterprise maintenance and support services. We provide global maintenance and support services for storage products and
integrated-system solutions through a combination of service engineers, remote diagnostic tools, online and telephone
assistance, and local third-party service providers. We have strategically located our distribution centers throughout our
markets to provide spare parts on an expedited basis. We provide different levels of service to meet customer requirements,
including on-site service, same-day or next-day service, and parts exchange.

o Professional services. We provide global professional services that are designed to help customers solve their storage
management and integration issues in a cost-effective manner. Our principal professional services offerings include the
following:

— SAN design and implementation services

— Data center design, build, and relocation support
— Storage architecture consulting services

— Storage solutions integration

— Virtual tape optimization services

— Business continuity plans

— Enterprise backup and recovery services

BACKLOG

We generally manufacture our products based on our forecasts of near-term demand. In certain cases, customers may reschedule or
cancel unfilled orders. For these reasons, we believe that backlog levels are not a meaningfu! indicator of future sales, and we cannot
provide any assurance thai we will ultimately recognize revenue for all of our backlog orders.

MARKETING AND DISTRIBUTION

We market our products and services on a global basis to end-user customers through our direct sales organization and through our
indirect channel partners. Our worldwide direct sales organization includes sales representatives, service engineers, system engineers,
system integrators, and administrative support staff. Sales made by our direct sales force accounted for approximately 55% of our
product revenue in 2002, 59% in 2001, and 56% in 2000.




Our indirect channel partners expand our reach into new markets and provide access to new customers. Indirect channel sales
accounted for approximately 45% of our product revenue in 2002, 41% in 2001, and 44% in 2000. We generally receive lower gross
profit margins on indirect channel sales, as compared to sales generated by our direct sales organization.

We participate in OEM agreements that provide for the sale of our products by other manufacturers. Some of our OEM customers
include Bull Alliance Compagnie, Fujitsu, NCR Corporation, NEC Corporation, Sun Microsystems, Inc., and Unisys Corporation. We
also participate in VAD and VAR agreements with a number of companies. Our revenue recognition accounting policies for indirect
channel sales differ from those used for direct sales. See Note 2 of “NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS in Item 8 of
this Form 10-K for a discussion of our revenue recognition policies. We are subject to various risks associated with our indirect channel
partners, as detailed in ltem 7, “MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS—FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS—We may be materially affected by our ability to grow our indirect
channels successfully,”” which information is incorporated by reference into this em 1.

International revenue accounted for approximately 49% of total revenue in 2002, 51% in 2001, and 51% in 2000. In each of these three
fiscal years, over two-thirds of our international revenue was derived from Europe, with the majority of the remaining balance coming
from Australia, Canada, Japan, and South Korea. We are subject to various risks associated with conducting business outside the U.S.
See Item 7, “"MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS—FACTORS
THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS—We may be materially affected by the risks of conducting business outside the United States,”
which information is incorporated by reference into this Item 1, for a discussion of risks associated with international operations.

WANUFACTURING AND MATERIALS

Our primary manufacturing and assembly facility is located in Puerto Rico. We also perform limited manufacturing and assembly in
Colorado and France. All of our manufacturing and assembly facilities are currently in compliance with 1ISO 9001, 9002, or 9003.

We purchase subassemblies, parts, and components for our products from both U.S. and international vendors. These purchases
make up a substantial portion of our production costs. In-house manufacturing, assembly, and testing make up the remaining balance
of our production costs.

We use proprietary design and manufacturing technologies to perform certain critical manufacturing steps for the read/write heads
used in our T9840 and T9940 series tape drives. The sophisticated nature of the exacting manufacturing process requires a clean room
environment. Even within a clean room environment, problems such as chemical contamination, power surges, optical misalignments,
and temperature variations—in any one of the many processes used in manufacturing—could halt production for an indeterminate
period of time,

Certain parts and components included in our products are obtained from a sole source supplier or a limited group of suppliers. For a
discussion of risks associated with sole source suppliers, see ltem 7, “MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS—FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS—We may be materially affected by
the risks associated with sole source suppliers,” which information is incorporated by reference into this item 1.

We have long-term supply contracts with certain suppliers, and we obtain other parts and components through purchase orders. Qur
suppliers are not obligated to supply products for an extended period or at specific guantities or prices. Our dependence on suppliers
involves a number of risks, including the possibility of a shortage of key parts or components, longer lead times, and reduced control
over production and delivery schedules. See ltem 7, “MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS—FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS—We may be materially affected by a failure to obtain
quality parts and components in a timely manner or by a failure to effectively manage inventory fevels,” which information is
incorporated by reference into this Item 1.

COMPETITION

The data storage industry is intensely competitive and is characterized by rapid and continuous technological change, short product life
cycles, changing customer requirements, and aggressive pricing. Our competitors vary in size and offer a broad range of products and
services. We compete primarily on the basis of technology, product availability, performance, quality, reliability, price, and customer
service. Strong competition has resulted in price erosion in the past, and we expect this trend to continue.

Competition for data storage products and services is characterized based on the class of products or services, as described below:

o Jape products. We are a leading provider of automated tape libraries, tape drives, and virtual tape solutions. Our main
competitors in these markets include Advanced Digital Information Corporation, Hewlett-Packard, IBM, and Quantum.

o Disk progucts. Our disk product offerings compete in the mainframe and open-systems disk markets. EMC, Hitachi, and IBM
hold dominant positions in the mainframe disk market. These competitors also have much larger research and development
pragrams, as well as substantially greater financial, technical, and marketing resources, than we do. Competition is much more
diverse in the open-systems disk market, which is characterized by low barriers to entry.




o Network products. Our SN60OO has a limited install base as it is targeted for tape networking applications. We also offer third-
party network products in conjunction with storage integration offerings for our customers. The market for network products is
highly competitive and characterized by low barriers to entry and rapidly changing standards for protocols and interconnects.

o Storage services. We compete with a wide range of service providers who vary in terms of size and service offerings, no one
of which is dominant in the storage services industry.

See Item 7, “MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS—FACTORS
THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS—We may be materially affected by aggressive competition,” which information is incorporated
by reference into this ltem 1, for a discussion of risk factors related to competition.

RESEARCH AND PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

We incurred research and product development costs of approximately $215 million in 2002, $245 million in 2001, and $258 million in
2000. We are focusing research and product development activities on the core businesses of tape products, virtual storage, and SAN
products and related services. We conduct research and product development activities primarily internally, but we also enter into
strategic partnerships and outsourcing arrangements for cerfain research and product development activities.

We anticipate that we will continue to incur significant research and product development costs in order to maintain or improve our
competitive position. We cannot provide any assurance that we will successfully develop future products in a timely or cost-efficient
manner. For further discussion of risk factors concerning product development, see Item 7, “MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS—FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS—We may
be materially affected by risks associated with new product development,” which information is incorporated by reference into this
ltem 1.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY AND LICENSES

We protect our proprietary rights through a combination of patents, copyrights, trademarks, and trade secret faws. We enter into
confidentiality agreements relating to our intellectual property with our employees and consultants, and we include confidentiality
provisions in license and non-exclusive sales agreements with our customers. Our policy is to apply for patents or other appropriate
proprietary or statutory protection in both the United States and selected foreign countries. We believe that the duration and effect of our
patents is adequate refative to the expected lives of our products.

We presently hold approximately 500 U.S. patents, approximately 60 of which were issued in 2002. We also have numerous patent
applications pending in the United States, including several that have been allowed and that we expect to be formally issued. Each
patent generally has a 20-year term from the first effective filing date. We also hold foreign counterparts to many of our U.S. patents,
and we have numerous applications pending in foreign countries. In addition, we have licenses to use patents held by others. No
individual patent, license, or other item of proprietary information is material to our business.

We have obtained certain trademarks and trade names for our products as part of our ongoing branding.

For discussion of risk factors concerning intellectual property, see item 7, “MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS—FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS—We may be materially
affected by the risks associated with developing and protecting intellectual property,” which information is incorporated by reference
into this ltem 1.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE

Compliance with the provisions of federal, state, local, and international laws regulating the discharge of materials into the environment,
or otherwise relating to the protection of the environment, has not had a material effect on our capital expenditures, earnings, or
competitive position.

EMPLOYEES
As of December 27, 2002, we had approximately 7,100 full-time employees.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to reports filed or
furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, are available free of charge on our
website at www.storagetek.com as soon as reasonably practicable after electronic filing of such material with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.




OTHER MATTERS

Qur business, particularly the storage products segment, has experienced seasonality in the past. The fourth quarter has historically
generated the most revenue, while the first quarter has generated the least revenue. See ltem 7, “MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS—FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS—We may
be materially affected by uneven sales patterns and by our ability to forecast customer demand accurately,” which information is
incorporated by reference into this Item 1, for a discussion of risk factors related to seasonality.

No single customer accounted for 10% or more of our total revenue in 2002. No material portion of our business is subject to contract
termination at the election of the U.S. government.

Reference is made to the following “NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS” set forth in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for
certain additional information, which information is incorporated by reference into this ftem 1:

Note 5  Description of our derivative instruments.

Note 6  Description of our credit facilities, debt, and lease obiigations.

Note 11 Information on the operations of business segments and geographic areas.

Reference is also made to ltem 7, “MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS," of this Form 10-K for information regarding liquidity, capital resources, and risk factors that may affect future results.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Qur headquarters are located in Louisville, Colorado. As of December 27, 2002, we owned or leased a total of approximately
3,539,700 square feet of space worldwide. At the present time, we believe that our existing properties are suitable and adequate to
meet our business needs.

The following is a summary of the locations, functions, approximate square footage, and estimated utilization of those properties:

Square Footage
Location Funetion Owned Leased Utilization

United States

Boulder County, CO  Executive and administrative offices, as well as manufacturing,
research and product development, spare parts, and finished goods

facilities 1,652,800 158,800 76%
Minneapolis, MN Research and product development facilities and administrative offices 193,000 — 60%
Norcross, GA Shared service center — 35600 100%
Other U.S. locations  Sales, customer service, and logistics facilities — 487,500  100%
Puerto Rico Manufacturing and assembly facilities 83,100 85900 100%
International
Toulouse, France Engineering, consulting integration, and marketing facilities — 200,000 50%
Europe Sales and customer service facilities — 430,200 92%
Canada Sales and customer service facilities — 88,700 100%
Asia/Pacific region  Sales and customer service facilities — 107,800 99%
Latin America Sales and customer service facilities — 16,300  100%

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For information regarding legal proceedings, see Note 8 of “NOTES TO CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,” included in ltem 8
of this Form 10-K, which information is incorporated by reference into this ltem 3.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
No matter was submitted to a vote of our security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended December 27, 2002.




Executive Qfficers and Certain Significant Employees of the Registrant
The following persons were serving as our executive officers or significant employees as of February 28, 2003.

Name Position Age
Thomas G. Arnold . ... ... Vice President and Corporate Controller E
Pierre J. Cousin . .. ... ... Vice President and General Manager, Storage Networking Business Unit 42
Gary D. Francis ... ... ... Corporate Vice President and General Manager, Automated Tape Solutions 55
Angel P Garcia.......... Corporate Vice President, Growth Markets and Global Services 50
Roger C. Gaston. . .. ... .. Corporate Vice President, Human Resources 46
JiEFE Kenney .. ......... Corporate Vice President, Worldwide Marketing and Strategy 47
Robert S. Kocol . . ... . ... Corporate Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 45
Thomas M. Major. . ...... Vice President and General Manager, Disk Business Unit 44
Patrick J. Martin. . .. ... .. Chairman of the Board, President, and Chief Executive Officer 61
Michael R. McLay. ... . ... Vice President, U.S./Canada Sales and Service, Global Channels, and Strategic Alliances 43
Roy G. Perry . .......... Corporate Vice President, Global Supply Chain, Manufacturing, Logistics, and Quality

Processes 46
Mark D. Roellig . ........ Vice President, General Counsel, and Secretary 47

Mr. Arnold was appointed Vice President and Corporate Controller in April 1997. From November 1995 to April 1997, he served as
Director of Worldwide Consolidation and Reporting. Mr. Arnold served as Manager of External Reporting from April 1991 to
November 1995. He has been empioyed in various other capacities since 1989. Mr. Arnold is not an executive officer of StorageTek.

Mr. Cousin was appointed Vice President and General Manager, Storage Networking Business Unit, in January 2002. From
November 2000 until this appointment, he served as Vice President, Assistant to the Chairman. From November 1997 until
February 2000, he served as General Manager, Southern Region, EAME and President of StorageTek France. From 1996 to 1997,
Mr. Cousin was Vice President, Mid-End Servers for Bull Corporation, an information technology solutions group based in Europe.

Mr. Francis was appointed Corporate Vice President and General Manager, Automated Tape Solutions, in May 2001. Prior to this
appointment, Mr. Francis was Vice President and General Manager, Automated Tape Solutions, from November 2000 to May 2001.
From February 2000 to November 2000, Mr. Francis was Vice President, Corporate Strategy. From February 1997 to February 2000,
Mr. Francis was Vice President and General Manager, Enterprise Nearline® Business Group. From September 1993 to February 1997,
Mr. Francis served as Vice President of the Nearline Business.

Mr. Garcia was appointed Corporate Vice President, Growth Markets and Global Services, in September 2002. Prior to this
appointment, Mr. Garcia was Vice President, Growth Markets and Global Services, from August 2001 to September 2002. From
January 2000 until July 2001, Mr. Garcia was Managing Director for IBM Chile, an information technology services company. From
January 1999 untif December 1999, Mr. Garcia was Vice President, Global Tele-Web operations at Xerox Corporation, a document
products and services company. From 1997 to 1998, Mr. Garcia was Vice President, Marketing and Operations, U.S. Southern
Operations at Xerox Corporation.

Mr. Gaston was appointed Corporate Vice President, Human Resources, in July 2001. Prior to this appointment, Mr, Gaston was Vice
President, Human Resources, from March 2001 to July 2001. From 1996 to 2000, Mr. Gaston was Senior Vice President, Human
Resources, for Toys “R” Us, an international retail toy store.

Ms. Kenney was appointed Corporate Vice President, Worldwide Marketing and Strategy, in July 2001. From February 2001 until this
appointment, Ms. Kenney was Vice President, Worldwide Marketing and Corporate Strategy. Prior to joining StorageTek, Ms. Kenney
held various senior positions with Xerox Corporation, a document products and services company, for more than 22 years. From 2000
to 2001, she was Senior Vice President, North American Solutions Group, Xerox Corporation. From 1998 to 2000, she served as
Region Vice President and General Manager for Xerox Business Services. From 1995 to 1998, Ms. Kenney served as Vice President
and General Manager, Xerox Houston Customer Business Unit.

Mr. Kocol was appointed Corporate Vice President and Chief Financial Officer in December 1998. Prior to this appointment, from 1996
to 1998, he served as Vice Prasident of Financial Planning and Operations. In 1991, Mr. Kacol joined StorageTek’s financial group as
Director of Financial Operations and was subsequently promoted to Director of Worldwide Field Qperations Finance and Administration.




Mr. Major was appointed Vice President and General Manager, Disk Business Unit, in January 2002. Prior to this appointment, from
March 2001 through December 2002, Mr. Major was Vice President, Marketing, for ManagedStorage International, a managed storage
services company. From January 2000 through March 2001, Mr. Major served as General Manager, Worldwide Marketing, Storage
Solutions, at Hewlett-Packard Company, a manufacturer of computer hardware and peripherals. From February 1998 through
January 2000, Mr. Major served as General Manager, OpenView Business Unit, at Hewlett-Packard Company.

Mr. Martin was appointed Chairman of the Board, President, and Chief Executive Officer in July 2000. Prior to joining StorageTek,
Mr. Martin served in various management positions from 1977 to 2000 at Xerox Corporation, a document products and services
company. From 1999 to 2000, Mr. Martin served as Corporate Senior Vice President/President—North American Solutions Group.
From 1998 to 1999, Mr. Martin was Corporate Senior Vice President/President—Developing Markets Operations, and from 1996 to
1998 he was Corporate Vice President/President—Canadian and Americas Operations.

Mr. McLay was appointed Vice President, U.S./Canada Sales and Service, Global Channels, and Strategic Alliances, in December 2000.
From 1999 to December 2000, Mr. McLay served as Vice President and General Manager, Central U.S. and Canada. From 1997 to
1999, Mr. McLay was President of StorageTek Canada. From 1996 to 1998, Mr. McLay served as Vice President, Business
Development.

Mr. Perry was appointed Corporate Vice President, Global Supply Chain, Manufacturing, Logistics, and Quality Processes, in
September 2002. Prior to this appointment, Mr. Perry was Vice President, Global Supply Chain, Manufacturing, Logistics, and Quality
Processes, from August 2001 to September 2002. He joined StorageTek from Dell Corporation, a computer systems company, where
he served as Vice President, Worldwide Manufacturing and Customer Experience, from January 2001 until August 2001; Vice
President for Home and Smail Business Segment of the Americas from 1999 until 2001; and Vice President of Dimension, Latitude, and
Inspiron Manufacturing Operations from 1997 untif 1999.

Mr. Roellig was appointed Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary in July 2002. Prior to this appointment, Mr. Roellig was a
director and the secretary of, and a consultant to, Bulletin News Network Inc., a news aggregation company, from June 2000 to
July 2002, From June 1997 to June 2000, Mr. Roellig was Executive Vice President, Public Policy, Human Resources & Law, Secretary
and General Counsel for U S WEST, Inc., a telecommunications company.




PART Il
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stack Exchange under the symbol STK. The table below reflects the high and low closing
sales prices of our common stock on the New York Stock Exchange composite tape as reported by The Wall Street Journal during each
fiscal quarter of 2002 and 2001. On February 28, 2003, there were 10,277 record holders of our common stock.

2002 High Low

First Quarter . . ... $24.84 $18.10
Second QUarter . ... . .. 2412  14.51
Third QUarter . . . .. . 1569 10.60
Fourth Quarter . . ... . .. . 2290 10.13
2001 High Low

First QUarter . . .. .. e $13.81 $ 9.13
Second QUANEr . ... . 16.55  10.23
Third Quarter . . ... 1466 11.75
Fourth Quarter . . ... . .. 2275 1212

We have never paid cash dividends on our common stock. We currently plan to continue to retain future earnings for use in our
business. Our credit facilities contain provisions restricting the payment of cash dividends.

Information regarding securities autharized for issuance under equity compensation plans is incorporated by reference to the
information under the caption “Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans™ in our definitive proxy statement
relating to our annual meeting of stockholders to be held May 21, 2003.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANGIAL DATA
FIVE-YEAR COMPARISON OF SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The fiscal year 2002, 2001, and 2000 statements of operations data has been derived from the consolidated financial statements and
notes appearing elsewhere in this Form 10-K. The fiscal year 1999 and 1998 statements of operations data has been derived from our
historical financial statements for such periods. The fiscal year 2002 and 2001 balance sheet data has been derived from the
consolidated financial statements and notes appearing elsewhere in this Form 10-K. The fiscal year 2000, 1999, and 1998 balance
sheet data has been derived from our historical financial statements for such periods. The following table (in thousands, except per
share amounts) should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto.

Fiscal Year Ended December

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

STATEMENT OF QPERATIONS DATA
REVENUE . . . .. $2,039,615 $2,045,322 $2,060,204 $2,368,231 $2,258,222
Operating profit (loss) ... ... ...... . ......... 138,156 98,452 4,017 (97,236) 312,805
Netincome (10SS) . ... ... . i 110,031 67,207 (1,782) (74,550) 198,248
Earnings (loss) per common share:

Basic .......... ... ... $ 105 § 065 $§ (0.02) § (0.75) $ 1.91

Diluted . ...... ... . . . . .. 1.02 0.64 (0.02) (0.75) 1.86
BALANCE SHEET DATA
Working capital . . .. ... . ... $ 656,223 $ 539,986 $ 470,602 $ 440,763 $ 538,331
Totalassets . ............... ... ... ... .... 1,876,140 1,758,883 1,653,558  1,735475 1,842,944
Totaldebt ......... ... ... ... .. . ... ..., 11,134 83,736 96,574 329,048 295,655
Total stockholders’ equity .. ... .. .. ... . ... 1,157,763 1,034,820 938,635 919,199 999,576

In 2000, we had restructuring and other related charges of approximately $27.3 million, net of tax. In 1999, we had litigation charges
and restructuring and other related charges of approximately $102.0 million, net of tax.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

All assumptions, anticipations, expectations, and forecasts contained in the following discussion regarding our business, future
products, business plans, financial results, performance, and future events are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Our actual results may differ materially because of a number of risks and
uncertainties. Some of these risks are detailed below in “FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS™ and elsewhere in this
Form 10-K. Forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of words such as “may,” “will,”” “should,” “expects,” “plans,”
“anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “intends,” “potential,” “continue,” or the negative of such terms, or other
comparable words. Forward-looking statements also include the assumptions underlying or relating to any such statements. The
forward-looking statements contained in this Form 10-K represent a good-faith assessment of our future performance for which
management believes there is a reasonable basis. We disclaim any obligation to update the forward-looking statements contained
herein, except as may be otherwise required by law.

1o LT}

BUSINESS SEGMENTS SUMMARY (in thousands, excep! perceniages)

Fiscal Year Ended December

As a % of As a % of As a % of

2002 Revenue 2001 Revenue 2000 Revenue
Revenue
Storage products . . ... ... ... .. L $1275941 62.6% $1,359,356 66.5% $1411932 68.5%
Storage Services . . ... ... 763,674 374 685,966 335 648,272 315
Total revenue .. ......... ... ... $2,039,615 100.0% $2,045,322 100.0% $2,060,204 100.0%
Cost of revenue
Storage products . . .. ... ... .. $ 700,806 $ 741142 $ 816,849
Storage services .. . ... ... 424,314 403,719 411,837
Total cost of revenue .. ........... ... ... .. $1,125,120 $1,144 861 $1,228,686
Gross profit
Storage products . . .. ... ... ... .. ... $ 575,135 $ 618,214 $ 595,083
Storage services . . .. ... ... ... 339,360 282,247 236,435
Total gross profit . . ... ... ... . ... .. .... $ 914,495 $ 900,461 $ 831,518
Gross profit margin
Storage products . . . ... ... 45.1% 45.5% 42.2%
Storage services .. ... .. ... 44.4% 41.1% 36.5%
Total gross profit margin . .. ................. 44.8% 44.0% 40.4%
Supplemental linancial data—slorage products

TEVEenue

Tapeproducts. . ......... ... . ... ... . ..., $ 989819 77.6% $1,099,666 80.9% $1,109,303 78.6%
Diskproducts . .. ........... ... .. ..... ... 145,792 114 114,985 8.4 145215 10.3
Network products . .. ..................... 88,533 6.9 67,713 5.0 49,714 35
Other ... ... . . . 51,797 4.1 76,992 57 107,700 7.6
Total storage products revenue . ... ... . ........ $1,275,941 100.0% $1,359,356 100.0% $1,411932 100.0%

2002 FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

We grew our earnings in 2002, despite the global economic downturn and depressed information technology spending. While many of
our competitors experienced revenue declines, we were able to maintain our revenue levels. Our revenue performance was driven by
success in selling integrated storage solutions, as well as a growing revenue contribution from new service offerings. We were able to
maintain our storage products gross profit margin and improve our storage services gross profit margin by focusing on reducing costs
and expenses. Our focus on costs and expenses also drove improvements in net income.

To reduce costs and expenses, we focused on improving the productivity of our global supply chain, applying more efficient inventory
management processes, and prioritizing our research and development activities. We reviewed all areas of the business to determine
the best use of our resources in meeting customer service objectives and improving time-to-market, cost, and manufacturing
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efficiency. These reviews resulted in changes such as outsourcing our printed circuit board manufacturing operations and reducing
inventory.

We continued to strengthen our balance sheet and cash flows during 2002. Our cash and cash equivalents increased to $657.6 million
as of December 2002, a $204.4 million improvement compared to the December 2001 level. Inventory levels decreased by
$50.7 million from 2001 to 2002, and debt-to-total capitalization decreased from 7% in 2001 to 1% in 2002. Our cash flow from
operations increased to $360.3 million in 2002, a $94.2 million increase compared to 2001. Through our strong balance sheet and
cash flows, we are positioning ourselves to seize future opportunities that will strengthen our business and improve our competitive
advantage.

REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

Total revenue for 2002 was $2.0 billion, largely unchanged compared to 2001. Storage products revenue decreased, but was largely
offset by increased storage services revenue. Total gross profit margin of 44.8% increased 0.8 points from 2001, The increase in 2002
gross profit margin was due to improvements in storage services margin, slightly offset by decreases in storage products gross profit
margin.

Total revenue for 2001 was $2.0 billion, fargely unchanged compared to 2000. Storage products revenue decreased, but was largely
offset by increased storage services revenue. Total gross profit margin of 44.0% increased 3.6 points from 2000. The increase in 2001
gross profit margin was due to improvements in both storage products gross profit margin and storage services gross profit margin.

Storage Products

Our storage products revenue consists of sales of tape products, disk products, and network products, including related software, for
the mainframe and open-systems markets. The open-systems market consists of products designed to operate in the Unix, NT, and
other non-MVS operating environments.

Storage products revenue decreased 6% in 2002, compared to 2001, primarily due to a 10% decrease in tape product sales. We
believe the decline in tape product sales is primarily attributable to the current global economic conditions and the associated
weakness in information technology spending, which translated into lower unit sales in 2002. The decline in tape products was partially
offset by increased sales of disk and network products. We believe this revenue growth was driven by early successes in our efforts to
provide integrated solutions of tape, disk, and network products, together with associated services. Storage products gross profit
margin decreased slightly in 2002. This decline reflects an increasing revenue contribution from our indirect channels, which typically
carry lower gross profit margins. The margin pressure was largely offset by our efforts to reduce product costs. We anticipate both of
these trends will continue to largely offset each other in 2003; however, we expect margins to be lower early in the year due to lower
anticipated production volumes and the related impact on fixed cost absorption.

Storage products revenue decreased 4% in 2001, compared to 2000, primarily due to significant price erosion and competition in the
disk market. Storage products gross profit margin increased 3.3 points in 2001 versus 2000, primarily due to more favorable channel
and product mixes. A higher percentage of our product revenue was generated by the direct sales channel in 2001, which typically
results in higher margins, and product mix shifted toward our higher margin products. The gross profit margin increases were partially
offset by decreases in the selling prices for disk products.

Storage Services

Qur storage services revenue consists primarily of revenue associated with the maintenance and support of our storage products and
third-party storage products, as well as professional services revenue associated with diverse storage consulting activities.

Storage services revenue increased 11% in 2002, compared to 2001. The growth in service revenue was driven largely by an expanded
effort to sell services that help customers successfully manage their storage requirements, with balanced growth across our storage
services portfolio. New service offerings include various storage consulting services, implementation services, and storage
management services. Storage services gross profit margin increased 3.3 points in 2002 versus 2001, reflecting improvements in
spare parts utilization and the service delivery process. We expect that further improvements in service margin will be tempered by the
increased revenue contribution from the new service offerings, which typically carry lower margins than our maintenance and support
SETvices.

Storage services revenue increased 6% in 2001, compared to 2000. Storage services gross profit margin increased 4.6 points in 2001
versus 2000. We attribute these increases primarily to improvements in the service delivery process and certain incremental billings.
RESEARCH AND PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

Research and product development expenses decreased 12% in 2002, compared to 2001, and decreased 5% in 2001, compared to
2000. We evaluate and prioritize research and product development programs to maximize our return on investment. Our research and
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product development activities focus on the core businesses of tape products, virtual storage, and SAN products and related services.
Research and product development costs as a percentage of total revenue were 11% in 2002, compared to 12% in 2001 and 13% in
2000. We conduct research and product development activities primarily internally, but we also enter into strategic partnerships and
outsourcing arrangements for certain research and product development activities. No single research or product development project
is expected to be individually material to our financial condition or results of operations, either in terms of the estimated future cost to
complete or in terms of expected future revenue or cash flows resulting from the completion of the project.

SELLING, GENERAL, AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE

Selting, general, and administrative expense (SG&A) remained largely unchanged in 2002, compared to 2001. SG&A decreased 2% in
2001, compared to 2000, primarily as a result of restructuring activities in 2000. SG&A as a percentage of total revenue was
approximately 28% in 2002, 27% in 2001, and 28% in 2000.

SG&A includes some items in each year that we believe are not indicative of future trends because of the circumstances that gave rise
to the recognition of these items. The following table and accompanying description explains the nature of each of these items (in
thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended December

2002 2001 2000
Litigation settlement reCOVEIY . .. . . ... .. .o\ $ — 8(22,250) $ —
Investment writedowns . . . .. ... .. 4515 12,047 —
Restructuring activities . .. ... . ... ... . — — 27176
Other — 6,944 —
Total impact on SG&A . .. ... ... $4,515 § (3,259) $27,176

In September 2002, we recognized a charge of $4.5 million in connection with the writedown of a cost-method investment. This
impairment charge resulted from the announcement of a purchase of the investee for less than our cost basis. As a result of this
development, we concluded that the decrease in the value of our investment was other than temporary in nature.

In December 2001, we recognized a gain of $22.3 million in connection with the settiement of a claim against a third party that arose
from a 1999 lawsuit settlement.

In December 2001, we recognized a charge of $12.0 million in connection with the writedown of a cost-method investment. This
impairment charge resulted from adverse developments in the financial condition of the investee during the fourth quarter of 2001 that
resuited in a recapitalization of the company. As a result of these adverse developments, we concluded that the decrease in the value of
our investment was other than temporary in nature. We have no remaining net book value for this investment as a result of the
impairment charge.

In December 2001, we recognized a charge of $6.9 miilion related to the abandonment of a building, investment losses associated with
a retirement plan for employees of an international subsidiary, and non-recurring severance charges incurred in connection with a
headcount reduction. Substantially all of the severance charges were incurred and paid during the fourth quarter of 2001.

During 2000, we incurred approximately $27.2 miliion of restructuring expense in connection with a broad restructuring program
announced in October 1999. Approximately $21.5 million of this charge related to employee severance expense, $5.3 million related to
the impairment writedown of assets at our manufacturing facility in Toulouse, France, as well as asset writedowns associated with the
spin-off of our managed storage services business, and $462,000 related to excess lease space in Canada and legal and accounting
expenses associated with the spin-off of our managed storage services business. The restructuring program was completed in the
third quarter of 2000.

INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE

[nterest income was largely unchanged in 2002 compared to 2001. Interest expense decreased $4.8 million in 2002, compared to
2001, primarily due to a decrease in outstanding debt.

Interest income increased $224,000 in 2001, compared to 2000, as a result of an increase in cash available for investment. Interest
expense decreased $9.9 million in 2001, compared to 2000, due to decreased borrowings under our debt and financing arrangements.

See “LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES—External Sources of Liquidity” for further discussion of our debt and financing
arrangements.
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INCOME TAXES

Our effective tax rate was 25% in 2002, 34% in 2001, and 35% in 2000. The reduction in effective tax rate for 2002 was due to two
factors. A $10.5 million tax benefit from the favorable resolution of prior year tax audits in the fourth quarter of 2002 accounted for
approximately 7 percentage points of the total decrease. The realization of benefits associated primarily with our manufacturing
operations in Puerto Rico accounted for the other 2 percentage points of the total decrease. We expect that our effective tax rate in
2003 will be higher than the 25% effective tax rate for 2002,

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” requires that deferred income tax
assets be recognized to the extent that realization of such assets is more likely than not. Based on the currently available information,
we have determined that we will more likely than not realize approximately $213.2 million of deferred income tax assets as of
December 27, 2002. Our valuation allowance of approximately $22.7 million as of December 27, 2002, relates principally to foreign net
operating loss carryforwards.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations is based on our consolidated financial
statements, which have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP). The preparation of our financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, related revenue and expenses, and disclosure of gain or loss contingencies. We
base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances.
Actual results could differ materially from these estimates.

Certain accounting estimates require us to make assumptions about matters that are highly uncertain at the time the estimates are
made, and under different assumptions or conditions, those estimates could be materially different. Management has discussed the
development, selection, and disclosure of these critical accounting estimates with the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors. We
believe that the application of the following critical accounting policies affects our more significant judgments and estimates used in the
preparation of our consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

The majority of our products and services are delivered subject to agreements with standard terms and conditions. In certain
situations, however, our agreements may include non-standard terms and conditions, or the transactions may contain multiple
elements. In these situations, we must make judgments to determine the appropriate accounting. These judgments generally involve
assessments regarding matters such as:

o whether there are sufficient legally binding terms and conditions,

o whether customer acceptance has been received,

o how the price shouid be allocated among the delivered and undelivered elements, and

o whether any undelivered elements are essential to the functionality of the delivered elements.

We evaluate the sufficiency of the terms and conditions of our agreements, as well as whether customer acceptance has been
received, based on advice from legal counsel. We recognize revenue for delivered elements in a multiple element arrangement once all
of the following criteria are satisfied: (a) uncertainties regarding customer acceptance are resolved, (b) no significant obligations for
performance remain, (c) the undelivered elements are not essential to the functionality of the delivered elements, and (d) the fair value
of each undelivered element is clearly determinable. Any elements for which we do not recognize revenue are deferred and recorded as
an accrued liability.

We record estimated reductions to revenue for customer and distributor programs, including price protection, rebates, and other
volume-based incentives. For those sales recognized under the sell-in method of accounting, we record estimated reductions in
revenue for anticipated future returns. These reserves are determined based on our historical claims and returns experience. Qur actual
claims experience in future periods may differ from our historical experience.

Our standard product warranties provide for the repair or replacement of products that fail to meet their published specifications. In
situations where a product fails its essential purpose to the customer, we may also be responsible for refunding the purchase price of
the product to our customer if we cannot remedy the product failure. We establish a warranty liability for the estimated cost of
warranty-related claims at the time revenue is recognized. The amount of the warranty liability reflects our estimate of the expected
future costs of fulfilling our obligations under the warranties. In developing our estimate, we consider our historical experience, the
length of the warranty period, and the expectations for new products.

While we engage in extensive product quality programs and processes, the development of new products involves the integration of
complex designs and processes both by us and by our suppliers. If we discover a product design flaw or other unanticipated problem,
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our actual warranty costs may differ significantly from our original estimates. if we determine that an increased warranty amount is
necessary, we would increase the warranty liability and cost of revenue in the period the determination was made. The following table
summarizes information related to our warranty reserves (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended December

2002 2001 2000
Balance at beginning of year . ......... ... ... .. $34242 $30,907 $23926
Accruals for warranties issued during the year . . .. ...... ... .. 46,888 42,894 40,097
Adjustments to warranties . ... ... ... ... 34 (1,433) 3,625
Amortization duringthe year. . . ... ... . ... ... L (40,009) (38,126) (36,741)
Balance atend ofyear . . ... .. .. .. .. . ... $41,155 $34,242 §$ 30907

We evaluate the collectibility of our accounts receivable based on both a specific analysis of known situations where we anticipate that
customers will be unable to meet their financial obligations and a general analysis of the length of time the receivables are past due. We
perform a quarterly analysis of our historical bad debt write-off experience to assess the reserve requirements for our aged
receivables. If circumstances related to a specific customer change, or if our historical bad debt write-off experience changes as a
result of changes in global economic conditions or other changes in our business, we may need to subsequently adjust our allowance
for doubtful accounts. The foliowing table summarizes information related to our allowance for doubtful accounts (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended December

2002 2001 2000
Balance at beginning of year . . . ... ... .. ... $20,086 $16,893 $19,492

Bad debtexpense ... ... ... ... ... . ... ... 9,887 6,921 3,536

Write-offs, net of recoveries. . . .......... . ..o (9,572)  (3,728)  (6,135)
Balance atendof year. ... ... ... .. .. ... ... .. .. ... $20,401 $20,086 $16,893

Inveniory Reserves

We had inventory reserves of $81.0 million as of December 27, 2002, for obsolete, slow-moving, and non-saleable inventory. We
establish and evaluate our inventory reserve estimates based on & quarterly review of inventory cost versus estimated market value.
Market value estimates involve significant judgments about a number of factors, including the impacts of future product or technology
introductions by us or by our competitors, delays in the availability of new products, changes in the purchasing patterns of our
customers, and changes in global economic conditions. To the extent that inventory cost exceeds estimated market value, we would
increase our inventory reserve, which would result in a corresponding charge to cost of revenue. The following table summarizes
information related to our inventory reserves (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended December

2002 2001 2000
Balance at beginning of year . .. ....... ... ... ... ... ... .. $85193 $63,766 §52701
Additions charged to cost of revenue . . ... ... ... ... 32,571 56,360 78,689
Inventory write-offs. . . ... ... ... .. ... (36,788)  (34,933) (67,624)
Balance atend of year ... . ........ ... . ... ... ... ..., $80,976 §857193 $63,766

Accounting for Income Taxes

We operate in multip'e tax jurisdictions, both within and outside the United States. In order to determine our tax provision, we allocate
income to each of these jurisdictions based on applicable tax laws. Because tax laws vary by jurisdiction and are subject to
interpretation, we must make various judgments and estimates in determining the allocations. Tax audits associated with the allocation
of this income, and other complex tax issues, may require an extended period of time to resolve and may result in income tax
adjustments if changes to our allocation are required between jurisdictions with different tax rates. While we believe that we have
appropriately provided for income taxes for all years, the resolution of tax audits may result in significant adjustments to our tax
provision and the associated financial results.

Our current effective tax rate is contingent upon existing tax laws in both the United States and in the respective countries in which our
international subsidiaries are located. Future changes in U.S. or international tax laws could affect the continued realization of the tax
benefit we are currently receiving. In addition, a change in the mix of our income among tax jurisdictions could change our overali
gffective tax rate.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the expected tax consequences of temporary differences between the
financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities, using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are
expected to reverse. We record a valuation allowance to reduce the deferred tax assets to the amount that we believe will more likely
than not be realized. We assess the need for a valuation allowance by reviewing our earnings history, the number of years that our
operating losses and tax credits can be carried forward, and future taxable income expectations by tax jurisdiction. In the event that
actual results differ from these estimates, we may need to adjust the valuation allowance. If, in our assessment, we determine that we
will be able to realize net deferred tax assets in excess of the recorded amount, we would decrease the valuation allowance, which
would cause tax expense to decrease. Likewise, if we determine that we will not be able to realize all or part of our net deferred tax
assets, we would increase the valuation allowance, which would cause tax expense to increase.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

For information regarding recent accounting pronouncements, see Note 2 of “NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,”
included in ltem 8 of this Form 10-K.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Internal Sources of Liquidity

We had $657.6 million of cash at the end of 2002, compared to $453.2 million at the end of 2001. The $204.4 million increase during
2002 was a result of cash flows generated by our operations. Our operating activities provided cash of $360.3 million during 2002,
compared to $266.1 million during 2001. The increase in cash provided by operations during 2002 was primarily due to our efforts to
effectively manage working capital. Cash used in investing activities increased to $97.8 million during 2002, compared to $51.3 million
during 2001, primarily due to the repurchase of $52.2 million of tape storage equipment from EDS in connection with a storage
services agreement. Cash used in financing activities increased to $50.4 million during 2002, as compared to $31.6 million during
2001. The increase in cash used in financing activities was primarily due to the repayment of borrowings under our credit facilities in
2002.

Our cash balance increased $173.5 million in 2001 as a result of cash flows generated by our operations. Our operating activities
provided cash of $266.1 million in 2001, compared to $336.8 million in 2000. The decrease in cash provided by operating activities in
2001 was primarily related to receipt of tax refunds of $54.9 million in 2000. Cash used in investing activities decreased to
$51.3 million during 2001, as compared to $78.7 million in 2000, primarily due to decreased expenditures on property, plant, and
equipment. Cash used in financing activities decreased $156.8 million in 2001, primarily due to repayments of borrowings under our
credit facilities in 2000.

We expect that cash flows from operations will continue to serve as our principal source of liquidity. Cash flows from operations could
be negatively impacted by a decrease in demand for our products and services as a result of rapid technological changes and other
risks described under “FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS.”

External Sources of Liguidity

We have a $150.0 million revolving credit facility (the Revolver) that expires in October 2004. The interest rates for borrowing under the
Revolver are dependent on our Total Debt to rolling four quarter Earnings Before Interest Expense, Taxes, Depreciation, and
Amortization (EBITDA) ratio and the term of the outstanding borrowing. The rate ranges from the applicable LIBOR plus 1.75% to
2.50% or the agent bank’s base rate plus 0.00% to 0.50%. We pay a 0.50% per annum commitment fee on any unused borrowings. We
had no outstanding borrowings under the Revolver as of December 27, 2002. The Revolver is secured by our U.S. accounts receivable
and U.S. inventory, and contains certain financial and other covenants, including restrictions on the payment of cash dividends on our
common stock.

We had a financing agreement with a bank that provided for the sale of promissory notes in the principal amount of up to $75.0 million
at any one time. This agreement expired in January 2002, and all of the outstanding promissory notes under the agreement were repaid
at that time.

Our debt-to-capitalization ratio decreased from 7% as of December 28, 2001, to 1% as of December 27, 2002, primarily due to the
repayment of borrowings under our credit facilities.
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Contractual Obligations
Foliowing is a summary of all of our contractual obligations as of December 27, 2002 (in thousands):

Payments Due by Period

Less than 1-3 4-5 More than 5

Total 1 Year Years Years Years
Capital lease obligations .. ........ . ... ... . ... . ... .. .. $ 16,066 $ 1616 $ 3214 $ 3210 §$ 8,026
Operating lease obligations . ........ ... ... .. ... ... ... 111,550 32,350 42,395 25,869 10,936
Purchase obligations . . ... ... ... .. ... ... . ... ... 69,300 24,400 20,200 8,200 16,500
Total ... ... $196,916 $58,366 $65,809 $37,279  $35,462

Purchase obligations include a significant outsourcing arrangement with EDS, which is more fully discussed in Note 3 of “NQOTES TO
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS." We expect to fund all of our obiligations through cash flows from operations. We believe
that we have adequate working capital and financing capabilities to meet our anticipated operating and capital requirements for the next
12 months. Over the longer term, we may choose to fund these activities through the issuance of additional equity or debt financing.
The issuance of equity or convertible debt securities could result in dilution to our stockholders, and we cannot provide any assurance
that such additional long-term financing, if required, could be completed on favorable terms.

INTERNATIONAL DPERATIONS

International operations accounted for approximately 49% of our revenue in 2002, compared to 51% in 2001 and 2000. We also sell
products through U.S. indirect channel partners that have some of their end-user customers located outside the United States. We
expect that we will continue to generate a significant portion of our revenue from international operations. See *“We may be materially
affected by the risks of conducting business outside the United States’ under “FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS” for a
discussion of the risks associated with conducting business outside the United States.

The majority of our international operations invoive transactions denominated in the local currencies of countries within western
Europe, principally France, Germany, and the United Kingdom; Australia; Canada; Japan; and South Korea. An increase in the exchange
value of the U.S. dollar reduces the value of revenue and profits generated by our international operations. As a result, our operating and
financial results can be materially affected by fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. In an attempt to mitigate the impact of
foreign currency fluctuations, we employ a foreign currency hedging program. See “MARKET RISK MANAGEMENT” below.

WMARKET RISK MANAGERIENT
Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

Our primary market risk relates to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The functional currency for our foreign subsidiaries is
the U.S. dollar. A significant portion of our revenue is generated by our international operations. As a result, our financial condition,
results of operations, and cash flows can be materially affected by changes in foreign currency exchange rates. We attempt to mitigate
this exposure as part of our foreign currency hedging program. The primary goal of our fareign currency hedging program is to reduce
the risk of adverse foreign currency movements on the reported financial results of our non-U.S. dollar transactions. Factors that could
have an impact on the effectiveness of our hedging program include the accuracy of forecasts and the volatility of foreign currency
markets. All foreign currency derivatives are authorized and executed pursuant to our policies. We do not hold or issue derivatives or
any other financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

To implement our foreign currency hedging program, we use foreign currency options and forwards. These derivatives are used to
hedge the risk that forecasted revenue denominated in foreign currencies might be adversely affected by changes in foreign currency
exchange rates. Foreign currency forwards are also used to reduce our exposure to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations in
connection with monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies.

A hypothetical 10% adverse movement in foreign exchange rates applied to our foreign currency exchange rate sensitive instruments
held as of December 27, 2002, and as of December 28, 2001, would result in a hypothetical loss in fair vaiue of approximately
$64.5 million and $55.6 million, respectively. The determination of the fair value of these instruments is described in Note 5 of “NOTES
TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,” included in tem 8 of this Form 10-K. The increase in the hypothetical loss for 2002 is
primarily due to an increase in outstanding derivatives used to hedge forecasted cash flows associated with forecasted revenue. These
hypothetical losses do not take our underlying international operations into consideration. We anticipate that any hypothetical loss
associated with our foreign currency exchange rate sensitive instruments would be offset by gains associated with our underlying
international operations.
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Interest Rale Risk

Changes in interest rates affect interest income earned on our cash investments, as well as interest expense on short-term borrowings.
A hypothetical 10% adverse movement in interest rates applied to cash investments and short-term borrowings would not have a
material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows.

Credit Rislk

We are exposed to credit risk associated with cash investments, foreign currency derivatives, and trade receivables. We do not believe
that our cash investments and foreign currency derivatives present significant credit risks, because the counterparties to the
instruments consist of major financial institutions, and we manage the notional amount of contracts entered into with any one
counterparty. Substantially all trade receivable balances are unsecured. The concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
receivables is limited by the large number of customers in our customer base and their dispersion across various industries and
geographic areas. Although we have a large number of customers who are dispersed across different industries and geographic areas,
a prolonged economic downturn could increase our exposure to credit risk on our trade receivables. We perform ongoing credit
evaluations of our customers and maintain an allowance for potential credit losses.

FACTORS THAT RGAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS
We may be materially affected by global economic and political conditions

Qur abifity to generate revenue growth during 2001 and 2002 was adversely affected by the slowdown in the global economy as
customers delayed their purchase decisions, reduced their information technology spending budgets, increased their purchase
authorization approval requirements, and reduced their capital expenditures by maximizing the current capacities of their data storage
equipment. We do not currantly anticipate any significant improvement in information technolagy spending during 2003. During 2002,
we implemented various cost-saving measures to help mitigate the adverse effects of the slowdown in the global economy. We cannot
provide any assurance that a prolonged economic downturn will not have additional adverse effects on our financial condition, results
of operations, or our ability to generate revenue growth. Furthermore, we cannot provide any assurance that our cost-saving measures
will be successful or sufficient to allow us to continue to generate improved operating results in future periods.

Our financial condition and results of operations could also be materially affected by unstable global political conditions. Terrorist
attacks or acts of war could significantly disrupt our operations and the operations of our customers, suppliers, distributors, or
reseliers. We cannot predict the potential impact on our financial condition or results of operations should such events occur.

We may be malerially affected by a decrease in demand for cur lape products ar by an inability to maintain kay
compelilive advanlages in tape

In 2002, approximately 78% of our storage products revenue was generated by sales of our tape products. Tape products also generate
a significant portion of our storage services revenue. If overall demand for tape storage products declines, or if we lose market share in
tape, our financial condition and results of operations could be materially affected.

One of the key competitive advantages that our tape products have over competing disk products is that tape products store data at a
fraction of the cost of disk storage. The cost of disk storage continues to decrease rapidly due to competition and new disk drive
technologies such as Advanced Technology Attachment (ATA). We must continue to develop and introduce new tape products that
reduce the cost of tape storage at a rate that is similar 1o or greater than the decline in disk storage costs in order to maintain this
competitive advantage. We cannot provide any assurance that we will be able to reduce the cost of our tape products at a rate similar to
the decline in disk storage costs.

We may be materially affecled by aggressive competition

The data storage industry is highly competitive, and customers make their decisions based on a number of competitive factors,
including the following:

o Functionality

= Technology

e Performance

o Reliability

o System scalability
° Price

o Quality
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° Product availability
= Customer service
o Brand recognition

We must address each of these factors effectively in order to successfully compete. If we are unable to adapt our products and
services to changes in these competitive factors, we may lose market share to our competitors.

We achieved some initial success during 2002 in our efforts to address customer storage needs by focusing on the delivery of storage
solutions that include a combination of tape, disk, and network products, together with the associated services. This success resulted
in increased revenue contributions from disk products, network products, and services during 2002. In order to grow revenue in the
future, itis critical that we execute on our Information Lifecycle Management strategy by continuing to capitalize on our ability to deliver
complete storage solutions to soive customer storage requirements.

We may be materially affected by our ability to grow our indirect channels successiully

We are continually developing our indirect distribution channels, including original equipment manufacturers (OEMs), vaiue-added
distributors (VADs), value-added resellers (VARs), and other distributors. Indirect channels sales contributed approximately 45% of our
total product revenue in 2002, compared to 41% in 2001 and 44% in 2000. Increasing our sales through these indirect channels is
critical to expanding our reach into the growing apen-systems market. Successfully managing the interaction of our direct and indirect
channel efforts to effectively reach all the potential customer segments for our products and services is a complex process. We cannot
pravide any assurance that we wili be successful in expanding our indirect channel sales. Our ability to forecast future demand for our
products may be adversely affected by unforeseen changes in demand from our indirect channel partners. Maintenance revenue also
may be adversely affected in future periods to the extent that customers of our indirect channel partners elect to purchase maintenance
services from our competitors. Our financial results may aliso be negatively affected if the financial condition of one or more of our
channel partners weakens or if the current economic downturn continues.

We may be materially affected by the risks associated with expanding our service offerings

Services contributed approximately 37% of our total revenue in 2002, compared to 34% in 2001 and 31% in 2000. This growth was
driven by new service offerings such as storage consulting services, implementation services, and storage management services. The
development and delivery of these new services are critical 1o the success of our plan to deliver complete storage solutions to our
customers. We must ensure that service professionals have the necessary skill sets, experience, tools, and training to support these
new service offerings. Any failure to properly develop or deliver our new and existing service offerings could have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition and resutts of operations.

We may be materially affecled by the risks associated with sole source suppliers

We purchase certain key parts, components, and services from sole source suppliers who we believe are currently the only providers
that meet our specifications or for which aiternative sources of supply are not readily available. The following table shows our
significant sole source suppliers and the products or services they provide:

Name of sole source supplier Product or service provided

imation Corporation T9840 and T9940 series tape media

Sanmina-SCi Corporation Printed circuit boards and certain other
manufacturing and repair services

LSI Logic Storage Systems D-Series disk products

Fuiitsu Electronics America Application-specific integrated circuits (ASICs) for
various tape and disk products

Philips Semiconductors ASICs for various tape and disk products

Celestica SNB000 network product

Herald Datanetics Ltd. (HDL) Key component used in certain tape products

We also obtain certain key parts and components from less significant sole source suppliers. If a sole source supplier did not continue
t0 provide its products or services, we would need 1o identify and qualify other acceptable suppliers. This process could take an
extended period, and we cannot provide any assurance that we could identify and qualify an alternative source on a timely basis or at
an acceptable quality or price. We cannot provide any assurance that significant sole source suppliers will be able to meet our ongoing
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quality or delivery requirements. Failure to meet these requirements may have a material adverse impact on our financial condition and
results of operations.

HDL is located in the People’s Republic of China (PRC). Our dependence on HDL is subject to additional risks beyond those associated
with other sole source suppliers, including the lack of a well-established court system or acceptance of the rule of law in the PRC, the
degree to which the PRC permits economic reform policies to continue, the political relationship between the PRC and the United
States, and broader political and economic factors. To date, we have not experignced any material problems securing key components
from HDL; however, we cannot provide any assurance that we will not experience material problems in the future.

We may be materially affected by a failure lo obtain gualily paris and components in a timely manner or by a failure lo
effectively manage inventory levels

We generally use standard parts and companents for our products and believe that there are a number of alternative, competent
vendors for most of those parts and components. Certain suppliers have experienced occasional technical, financial, or other problems
that have delayed deliveries in the past. An unanticipated faiture of suppliers to meet our requirements for an extended period, or the
inability to secure comparable components in a timely manner, could result in a shortage of key components or products, longer lead
times, reduced control ovar production and delivery schedules, and an inability to fulfill customer orders in a timely manner.

We have reduced our inventory levels by over 27% in 2002, primarily as a result of lean manufacturing initiatives. As we continue to
move toward a lean manufacturing environment, we will become increasingly dependent on a limited supplier base to deliver quality
parts and components in a timely manner. A supplier’s inability to deliver parts and components on a timely basis, or our failure to
effectively manage inventery levels, could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

We may be malerially affected by uneven sales patierns and by our ability to forecast customer demand accuralgly

In the past, our results have followed a seasonal pattern, which reflects the tendency of customers to make their purchase decisions at
the end of a calendar year. During any fiscal quarter, a disproportionately large percentage of total product sales is earned in the last
weeks or days of the quarter. It is difficult to predict the extent to which these historical trends will continue in the future. These uneven
sales patterns have become more pronounced with the slowdown in the global economy. We cannot provide any assurance that we
will be able to manage our uneven sales patterns.

We prepare and update our forecasts on a regular basis to predict customer demand for our products and services. If predicted
demand is higher than actual demand, we may have excess inventory or an underutilized employee base. If actual demand exceeds
predicted demand, we may not be able to meet customer requirements in a timely manner due to manufacturing or service constraints.
We cannot provide any assurance that we will be able to forecast customer demand accurately or respond quickly to changes in
customer demand.

Qur gross profit margin may be materially affected by product mix, channe!l mix, and resale of third-parly producis

We provide a variety of solutions to meet customer needs, including tape, disk, and network products along with associated services.
Our products and services contribute varying gross profit margins, and the gross margin on a customer’s total solution is dependent
on the amounts and types of products or services involved. We cannot provide any assurance that our future gross profit margin wili be
similar to our historical gross profit margin.

Ve market our solutions through a combination of a direct sales organization and indirect channel partners. Direct sales to the end-user
customer usually result in higher gross profit margins than indirect channel sales. We cannot provide any assurance that changes in
our channel mix will not have a material impact on gross profit margin in the future.

Pressure on our disk product gross profit margins is expected to increase as our disk revenue shifts from our enterprise-class products
to open-systems products developed and manufactured by LSI. We continue to increase the amount of third-party products sold, and
our gross profit margin may be adversely affected by the use of these products in our total storage solutions. We may also be at a cost
disadvantage in acquiring third-party products that are manufactured by competitors.

We may be materially atfected by rapid technelogical change and evolving industry standards

Short product life cycles are inherent in high-technology industries due to rapid technological change and evolving industry standards.
Our financial condition and results of operations depend on our ability to respond effectively to these changes. We cannot provide any
assurance that we will be able 1o successfully develop, manufacture, and market innovative new products or adapt our current
products to new technologies or new industry standards. In addition, customers may be reluctant to adopt new technologies and
standards, or they may prefer competing technologies and standards.

SAN solutions are an example of the rapid technological change in our industry, since SAN technologies and standards are continually
evolving. We continue to develop the necessary product modifications and prafessional services knowledge to implement our SAN
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solutions successfully in various customer operating environments. Because the SAN market changes so quickly, it is difficult to
predict the future rate of adoption of our SAN solutions.
We may be materially affecled by risks associated wilh new product development

New product research and development is complex and requires the investigation and evaluation of muitiple alternatives, as well as
planning the design and manufacture of those alternatives selected for further development. Research and development efforts could
be adversely affected by any of the following:

o Hardware and software design flaws
o Product development delays

o Changes in data storage technology
o Changes in operating systems

o Changes in industry standards

In addition, we have outsourced software development for certain tape and network products to Wipro Technologies. We cannot
pravide any assurance that research and development activities will be successful in bringing new products to market.

Manufacturing new products involves integrating complex designs and processes, coordinating with suppliers for parts and
components, and managing manufacturing capacities to accommodate forecasted demand. Failure to obtain sufficient quantities of
parts and components, as well as other manufacturing delays or constraints, could adversely affect the timing of new product
introductions. We have experienced product development and manufacturing delays in the past that adversely affected our results of
operations and competitive position.

When we introduce new products, we must effectively manage the transition from our existing products to the new products. If we do
not manage the transition effectively, we may be subject to the following adverse effects:

o Excess or obsolete inventory

o Insufficient inventory or manufacturing capacity to meet customer demand

° Delayed customer purchases

o Lost sales if customers purchase from our competitors
in addition, sales of our new products may replace some of the sales of our existing products. We cannot provide any assurance that
we will be able to successfully manage the development, introduction, or transition of new products in the future.
We may be materially alfecied by the risks associaled wilh developing and prolecting intellectual properly

We depend on our ability to develop new intetlectual property that does not infringe on the rights of others. We cannot provide any
assurance that we will be able to continue to develop such new intellectual property.

We rely on a combination of U.S. patent, copyright, trademark, and trade secret laws to protect our intellectual property rights. We enter
into confidentiality agreements relating to our intellectual property with our employees and consultants, and we include confidentiality
provisions in license and non-exclusive sales agreements with our customers.

We also file patent and trademark registration applications with foreign governments; however, many foreign countries do not have
intellectual property laws that are as well developed as those of the United States.

Despite all of our efforts to protect our intellectual property rights, unauthorized parties may attempt to copy or otherwise obtain or use
our intellectual property. Monitoring the unauthorized use of our intellectual property is difficult, particularly in foreign countries. We
cannot provide any assurance that we will be able to adeguately protect our intellectual property.

We may be materially affected if we are unable to attract, retain, and motivate key employees

Our future success depends in large part on our ability to aftract, retain, and motivate our key employees. We face significant
competition for individuals who possess the skills required to sell our products and services, as well as design, develop, manufacture,
and market those products and services. An inability to successfully attract, retain, and motivate these employees could have an
adverse effect on our future financial condition and results of operations.
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We may be materially affecled by the risks of conducting business outside the United Stales

Our international business may be affected by changes in demand resulting from global and localized economic, business, and political
conditions. We are subject 1o the risks of conducting business outside the United States, inciuding the following risks:

o Adverse political and economic conditions
o Impositions of tariffs or quotas
o Changes in laws or regulations

o

Difficulty in obtaining export licenses

o

Potentially adverse tax or labor laws
s The burdens of complying with a variety of foreign laws
o Longer payment cycles typically associated with international sales

0

Other factors outside our control

We expect these risks to increasg in the future as we expand our operations in Eastern Europe, Latin America, and Asia. We cannot
pravide any assurance that these factors will not have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations in the
future.

Our manufacturing operations may be materially affecled by weather-related risks

We manufacture and assemble a significant portion of our products in Puerto Rico. Our ability to perform these activities may be
significantly affected by weather-related risks beyond our control. We believe that if the Puerto Rico facility were significantly affected
by adverse weather, we could relocate t0 an alternative facility within a reasonable period of time; however, we cannot provide any
assurance that we would be able to relocate that facility without a material adverse impact on our financial condition or results of
operations.

We may be malerially afiected by restructuring aclivities

We have recognized significant restructuring charges in the past and it is possible that changes in our business, industry, or in the
global economy may necessitate restructuring activities in the future. The necessity for restructuring activities may result in expenses
that adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations and may require incremental cash payments.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
The information required under this Item 7A is included in the section above titled “MARKET RISK MANAGEMENT.”
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To the Stockholders and
Board of Directors of
Storage Technology Corporation:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of operations, cash flows,
changes in stockholders’ equity, and comprehensive income (loss) present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Storage Technology Corporation and its subsidiaries at December 27, 2002 and December 28, 2001, and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 27, 2002 in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management;
our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these
statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for goodwill on the
first day of the Company’s fiscal year 2002 as required by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets. e

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

Denver, Colorado
January 22, 2003
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STORAGE TECKNOLOGY CORPCRATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In Thousands, Except Share Amounts)

December 27, December 28,
2002

2001
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . . . .. ... .. $ 657599 § 453,217
Accounts receivable . . . . .. 566,863 505,630
VEMIOIIES . . . 133,275 183,980
Deferred income tax assels . . ... . . 99,246 95,459
Other CUMBNE aSSBTS . . . o o o o e e 7,256 16,240
Total CUITeNt @SSEIS . . . . . . 1,464,239 1,254,526
Property, plant, and equipment . . .. .. ... 240,021 232,289
Spare parts for maintenance . . .. ... .. 39,346 35,674
Deferred inCOME 18X aSSEIS . . . . o o ot o 114,002 121,826
Other 8SSELS . . . o o ot 118,532 114,568
TOtAl @SSEIS . . o v o $1,976,140 $1,758,883
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Credit facilities . . . . . . . o $ — $ 73,401
Current portion of long-term debt . ... ... . ... . ... . . . ... 773 812
Accounts payable . . . .. . e 135,348 66,648
Accrued Hiabilities . . . . . .. e 421,511 361,113
Income taxes payvable . ... ... .. 215,240 212,566
Other current liabilities . . . . . . . . 35,144 —
Total current liabilities . . . . . ... 808,016 714,540
Long-term debt . . . . . 10,361 9,523
Total liabilities . . ... . . 818,377 724,063

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 6 and 8)
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common stock, $0.10 par value, 300,000,000 shares authorized; 106,849,329 shares issued at

2002 and 105,032,665 shares issued at 2001 . . ... ... ... .. . ... . 10,685 10,503
Capital in excess of parvalue . . ... ... . ... .. . 908,100 875,379
Retained earnings . . . .. e 260,160 150,129
Accumulated other comprehensive income (I0SS) . ... ... ... .. . . (9,584) 7,642
Treasury stock of 238,276 shares at 2002 and 200,643 shares at 2001, atcost ... ......... (4,444) (3,777)
Unearned compensation . .. .. ... .. ... (7,154) (5,056)

Total stockholders” equity . .. . ... .. 1,157,763 1,034,820
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . ... ... ... ... . .. $1,976,140 $1,758,883

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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STORAGE TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Year Ended
December 27, December 28, December 29,
2002 2001 2000
Revenue:

Storage products . . . . .. oo $1275941 $1,359,356 $1,411,932
Storage SBrViCBS . . . . . . 763,674 685,966 648,272
Total revenue . . ... ... 2,039,615  2,045322 2,060,204

Cost of revenue:
Storage products. . . . .. 700,806 741,142 816,849
STOrage ServiCesS . . . . .. 424,314 403,719 411,837
Total costof revenue . . . .. .. o e 1,125,120 1,144,861 1,228,686
Gross profit . . ... 914,495 900,461 831,518
Research and product development costs . ........... ... ... .. ... .. 215,007 244 542 257,798
Seiling, general, and administrative expense .. . ... ... ... . ... ... ... 561,332 557,467 569,703
Operating profit . ... ... . . .. . 138,156 98,452 4,017
Interest iNCOMe . . . . ... e 10,250 10,189 9,965
IMMerest BXDENSE . . . . . (2,075) (6,834) (16,723)
Income (loss) before income taxes . ............ ... ... ..., 146,331 101,807 (2,741)
Benefit (provision) forincome taxes .. .. ... ... L (36,300) (34,600) 959

Netincome (I0SS) . . ... .. . $ 110,031 $ 67,207 $ (1,782)

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE

Basic earnings (loss) percommonshare. .. .......... .. . i, $ 105 § 065 $ (0.02)
Weighted-average shares . ... ... ... . . . . e 105,108 103,143 100,859
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share . .. ... ... ... .. ... ... $ 102 § 064 $  (0.02)
Weighted-average and dilutive potential shares .. ................. .. .... 107,437 104,929 100,859

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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STORAGE TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In Thousands)

Year Ended
December 27, December 28, December 29,
2002 2001 2000

QPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers .. ... ... ... .. $2,003,517 $2,083,280 $2,085,470
Cash paid to suppliers and employees ... ... ... ... . . .. . i (1,636,056) (1,842,709) (1,773,014)
Cash received from (paid for) Iitigation and other special items .. ............ — 19,730 (25,373)
Inferest received . . . . ... .. 9,956 10,189 9,965
Interest paid . .. ... ... ... (1,698) (5,917) (15,126)
Income tax (paid) refunded . . . ... ... (15,430) 1,522 54,858

Net cash provided by operating activities . . ......... ... ... ... .. ..., 360,289 266,095 336,780
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds frominvestments. . .. ... ... ... .. 2,004 — —
Purchase of property, plant, and equipment . .. ... .. ... . ... ... .. ... (88,459) (67,834) (71,815)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and equipment . ... ....... ... ... ... 1,274 114 2,053
Otherassels ... .. . {12,650) 6,417 (8,921)

Net cash used in investing activities . .. ........ ... ... . ... ... (97,831) (61,303) (78,683)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayments of credit facilities, net . .. ... ... ... .. ... . L. (73,401) (12,227)  (188,472)
Proceeds from employee stock plans . .. ....... ... ... ... ... ..., 23,979 18,043 15,825
Proceeds from other debt. . .. ... .. ... ... . . ... 1,625 2,305 11,974
Repayments of other debt ... ....... ... .. ... ... . ... . ... (2,577) (9,289) (27,729)
Repayment of company-owned life insurance policy loans. .. ............... — (30,414) —

Net cash used in financing activities . .. ....... ... ... . ... ... ... .. (50,374) (31,582) (188,402) |

Effect of exchange rate changesoncash . . ........ ... ... ... ... .... (7,702) (9,724) (5,385)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents . ......... ... ... .. ... . ....... 204,382 173,486 64,310
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . ... ... ... ... ... ... ..... 453,217 279,731 215,421
Cash and cash equivalents atendofyear .. ...... ... ... . .. . ... . ... ... $ 657,509 § 453217 § 279,731
RECONGCILIATION QF NET INGOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net inCOMe (I0SS) . . . . oo ot e $ 110,031 $ 67207 $ (1,782)
Depreciation and amortization expense . . ... ... ... 90,533 107,026 139,664
nventory writedowns . . .. ... ... 32,571 56,360 78,689
Non-cash litigation and other special items .. .......... .. ... ... ... ... — 16,471 5,720
Transfation (gain) 10SS . . .. . .. .. e 8,990 (23,791) 13,381
Other non-cash adjustments toincome . . .. .. .. ... ... . ... ... ... ... ... 17,694 34,245 (4,107)
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable . ......... .. ... ... .. L {36,008) 30,713 52,379
(Increase) decrease in inventories . ......... ... .. 21,403 (15,813) (28,597)
Increase in other current @ssets. . ... ... ... .. ... (3,550) {4,661) —
Increase in spare parts . ...... ... ... (22,998) (11,147) (27,414)
(Increase) decrease in net deferred income tax assets . ................... 4,622 (22,256) (30,936)
Increase {decrease) in accounts payable . . ... .. ... ... 67,337 (31,646) (9,816)
Increase in accrued liabilities . .. ... ... . 39,865 6,882 65,259
Increase in other current liabilities . ... ... ... ... ... ... 16,869 — —
Increase in income taxes payable. . ... ... .. ... ... 13,020 56,505 84,340

Net cash provided by operating activities . ... . ......... ... .. . ... .... $ 360,289 $ 266,095 $ 336,780

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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STORAGE TECHNCLOGY CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKKOLDERS' EQUITY
(In Thousands, Except Share Amounis)

Accumulated

Capital in Other
Common  Excess of  Retained Comprehensive Treasury  Unearned
Stock Par Value  Earnings Income {Loss)  Stock  Compensalion Total
Balances, December 31,1999 . .. . .. ... .. $10,083 $830,780 § 84,704 $ — §(2,334) $(4,034) $ 919,199
Common stock issued under stock purchase
ptan, and for exercises of options
(1,650,638 shares) . ............ .. 165 17,188 — — — — 17,353
Netloss . ........... ... ... .... — — (1,782) — — — (1,782)
Option exchange offering (555,943 shares) . 56 5,576 — — —  (5,632) —
Other. . ... ... .. ... ... . ... ...... 16 1,200 — — — 2,649 3,865
Balances, December 29,2000 . . ... ... ... 10,320 854,744 82,922 — (2,334 (7,017) 938,635
Components of comprehensive income;
Netincome ... ................. — — 67,207 — — — 67,207
Other comprehensive income. . ... ... — — — 7,642 — — 7,642
Total comprehensive income .. ... .. — — 67,207 7,642 — — 74,849
Common stock issued under stock purchase
plan, and for exercises of options
(1,830,618 shares) . .............. 183 17,860 —_— — — — 18,043
Other. ... .. ... ... .. .. — 2,775 — — (1,443) 1,961 3,293
Balances, December 28, 2001 ... ... ... .. 10,503 875,379 150,129 7,642 (3,777)  (5,056) 1,034,820
Components of comprehensive income:
Netincome .................... — — 110,031 — — — 110,031
Other comprehensive loss. . .. ... . ... — — —  (17,226) (17,226)
Total comprehensive income ... .. .. — — 110,031 (17,226) — — 92,805
Common stock issued under stock purchase
plan, and for exercises of options
(1,607,131 shares) . ... ........... 161 23,794 — — — — 23,955
Other. ... ... . .. . . L 21 8,927 — — (667)  (2,098) 6,183
Balances, December 27,2002 . . . ... ... .. $10,685 $908,100 $260,160 $(9,584) $(4,444) $(7,154) $1,157,763

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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STORAGE TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
{In Thousands)

Year Ended
December 27, December 28, December 29,
2002 2001 2000
Netincome (10SS) . . . o ottt $110,031 $67,207 $(1,782)
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Unrealized gain on marketable securities:
Holding gain, net of tax expense of $977, 80, and $0 . . .. ... ... ... . ... .. 2,280 — —
Foreign currency hedging contracts:
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle on adoption of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 133 and 138, net of tax benefit of $0,
$(3,881),and 80 . . .. . ... .. — (7,535) —
Gain (loss) on foreign currency cash flow hedges, net of tax expense (benefit) of
$(18,106), $10,364, and $0 . . . . ... .. . ... (29,045) 26,692 —
Reclassification adjustment for net (gains) losses included in net income, net of tax
benefit (expense) of $5,947, $(4,284), and $0 . ... . ... ... ... L 9,539  (11,515) —
Other comprehensive income (I0SS) . . . . . . .o o (17,226) 7,642 —
Comprehensive iINCOME (I0SS) . . . ... ..ot $ 92805 $74849 $(1,782)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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STORAGE TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION
MOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NGTE 1—NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Storage Technology Corporation (StorageTek or the Company) designs, develops, manufactures, and markets a broad range of storage
solutions for digitized data, including business continuity and disaster recovery solutions. These solutions are designed to be easy to
manage and allow universal access to data across servers, media types, and storage networks in both the mainframe and
open-systems environments. The principal markets for the Company’s products and services are located in the United States and
Europe.

NOTE 2—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Storage Technology Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiaries
(collectively, StorageTek or the Company}. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

FiscaL YEAR

The Company’s fiscal year is a 52- or 53-week period ending on the last Friday in December. Accordingly, fiscal year 2002 ended on
December 27, 2002, fiscal year 2001 ended on December 28, 2001, and fiscal year 2000 ended on December 29, 2000. Fiscal years
2002, 2001, and 2000 were all 52-week fiscal years. All references to years in these notes to consolidated financial statements
represent fiscal years unless otherwise noted.

SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, related revenue
and expenses, and disclosure of gain or loss contingencies. Management has made estimates in several areas including, but not
limited to, estimates of revenue reserves, inventory reserves, and income taxes. Actual results could differ materially from these
estimates.

Revenue RECOGNITION

StorageTek primarily derives revenue from the sale of storage products, including related software, and storage services. The Company
bases its revenue recognition policies on the nature of the products or services, the terms and conditions under which the products or
services are delivered, and the Company’s historical experience with returns and adjustments. The majority of the Company’s software
is designed to be installed and operate with the Company’s storage products, and does not require significant modification or
customization. The Company’s revenue recognition policies are based on the guidance in Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101, “Revenue
Recognition in Financial Statements,” and Statement of Position 97-2, “Software Revenue Recognition.” Total revenue contribution by
policy is:

2002 2001 2000

ENG-USE POAUCES .+« oo e 34%  40%  39%
Indirect channel products—sell-in method . . .. .. ... ... ... . ... .. ... 15% 15%  16%
Indirect channe! products—sell-through method . . . ... ... ... .. ... .. ... 14% 1% 14%
SIOrage ServiCeS . . ... oo 37%  34%  31%
Total . . 100% 100%  100%

End-user products.  Revenue for product sales to end-user customers is recognized when all of the foliowing criteria have been met:
(a) evidence of an agreement exists, (b) delivery to and acceptance by the customer has occurred, (c) the price to the customer is fixed
or determinable, and (d) collection is reasonably assured. Product is deemed accepted by the customer either at the time of installation
at the customer-designated site or on receipt of written customer acceptance, depending on the terms of the contract and applicable
commercial faw.

Indirect channel products—sell-in method.  Revenue for product sales to all original equipment manufacturers (OEMs) and certain
value-added distributors (VADs), value-added resellers (VARs), and other distributors is recognized when all of the following criteria are
met: (a) evidence of an agreement exists, (b) delivery has occurred, (c) the price to the customer is fixed or determinable, and
(d) coliection is reasonably assured. Sales to indirect channel customers under the sell-in method are generally subject to agreements
that provide limited rights of return with respect to unsold products or subsequent sales price adjustments. Revenue to indirect channel
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customers on the sell-in method is recognized at the time of shipment, with revenue reductions recognized for estimated returns or
price adjustments based on returns experience and historical claims.

Indirect channel products—sell-through method.  Revenue for product sales to certain VADs and VARs is recognized when all of the
following criteria are met; (a) evidence of an agreement exists, (b) delivery has occurred, (c) the price to the customer is fixed or
determinabie, (d) collection is reasonably assured, and (e} sell-through by the VADs and VARs to their customers has occurred. Sales
to VADs and VARs under the sell-through method are generally subject to agreements that allow for rights of return with respect to
unsold products, subsequent sales price adjustments, and return rights under the product warranties, and are recorded as revenue
reductions based on returns experience and historical claims.

Product warranty, The Company provides warranties associated with the sale of its products. The Company's standard product
warranties provide for the repair or replacement of products that fail to meet their published specifications. In situations where a
product fails its essential purpose to the customer, the Company may also be responsible for refunding the purchase price of the
product if the Company cannot remedy the product failure. The Company establishes a warranty liability for the estimated cost of
warranty-related claims at the time revenue is recognized. The following table summarizes information related to the Company’s
warranty reserves (in thousands):

2002 2001 2000
Balance at beginning of year .. ... ... ... ... ... ... ... $34,242 $30,907 $23926
Accruals for warranties issued during the year . ... ........... 46,888 42,894 40,097
Adjustments to warranties .. ... ... ... .. 34 (1,433) 3,625
Amortization during the year. . ... .. ... ... ... .. ... ...... (40,009) (38,126) (36,741)
Balance atendofyear ... ...... ... ... . ... .. ... ... .. $41155 §$34,242 $ 30,907

Storage services. Revenue for maintenance service contracts and storage services arrangements is recognized ratably as earned
over the contractual periocd. Revenue for time and material contracts is recagnized as the services are rendered. Service costs and
expenses are recognized as incurred. Maintenance services are sometimes bundled with the sale of product. In these situations, the
Company utilizes a residual value method of accounting te unbundle the products and services. Under the residual value method of
accounting, revenue is deferred for the estimated fair value of the undelivered services. The Company estimates the fair value of the
undelivered services based on separate service renewals with other customers or on renewal rates quoted in contracts. Deferred
service revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over the contractual service period.

FaiR VALUE oF FivANCIAL [NSTRUMENTS

The Company’s financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, foreign currency options and forwards, and long-term debt, |
The carrying amount for cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value due to the short maturities and variable rates of interest
associated with those instruments. The foreign currency options and forwards are carried at fair value on the Consolidated Balance
Sheet. See Note 5 for a further description of the methods used by the Company to determine the fair value of its derivatives. The
carrying amount of long-term debt approximates fair value based on current rates available for similar types of instruments.

CastH EQUIVALENTS

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are both readily convertible to cash and have original maturities of
three months or less at the time of acquisition. The Company had $519,199,000 of cash equivalents as of December 27, 2002, and
$355,329,000 as of December 28, 2001.

ALiowance For DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

The allowance for doubtful accounts reflects the Company’s best estimate of probable future losses on its accounts receivable. The
Company determings the allowance based on known troubled accounts, historical experience, and other available evidence. The
following table summarizes information related to the Company’s allowance for doubtful accounts (in thousands):

2002 2001 2000
Balance at beginning of vear . .. ......... ... ... ... . ... ... .. $20,086 $16,893 $19,492
Bad debtexpense .. ... ... .. ... 9,887 6,921 3,536
Write-offs, net of recoveries. . . ... ...... ... ... ..., ... . ... (9,572)  (3,728)  (6,139)
Balance atendof vear. . ... ... ... .. ... ... ... ... $20,401 $20,086 $16,893
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INVENTORIES

Inventories include material, labor, and factory overhead and are accounted for at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market
value. The components of inventories, net of the associated reserves, are as follows (in thousands).

2002 2001
Raw materials . .. ... . . .. . .. $ 22,095 $ 41,850
WOrK-iN-PproCeSS . . . . oo 40,344 57,641
Finished goods . . ... . ... . . . . .. 70,836 84,489

$133,275 $183,980

The Company evaluates the need for obsolete, slow-moving, and non-saleable inventory reserves by reviewing forecasted product
demand and market values on a quarterly basis. Inventory reserves are established to the extent that the cost of the inventory exceeds
the estimated market value of the inventory based on assumptions regarding future demand and market conditions. The following table
summarizes information related to the Company’s inventory reserves (in thousands):

2002 2001 2000

Balance at beginning of year ... ....... ... .. ... . ... .. . ... $ 85193 $63,766 $ 52,701
Additions charged to cost of revenue . .. ... . ... ... L. 32,571 56,360 78,689
Inventory write-offs. . . . ... ... ... L (36,788) (34,933) (67.,624)

Balance atendof year . ........... .. ... . ... ... $80976 $85193 § 63,766

SpraRe PaRTS FOR MAINTENANCE
Spare parts for maintenance services are valued at cost, and consist of the following (in thousands):

2002 2601
Spare parts for maintenance. . . ... ... ... ... $106,261 $109,710
Less: Accumulated amortization .. ... ... . (66,915)  (74,036)

$ 39,346 § 35,674

Amortization of spare parts is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the associated products,
which are generally five to ten years. Spare parts amortization expense was $19,326,000 in 2002, $17,087,000 in 2001, and
$27,795,000 in 2000.

PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant, and equipment is valued at cost, and consists of the following (in thousands):

Estimated
Usefut
2002 2001 Life
Machinery and equipment .. . ....... ... .. ... ... .. $ 609,954 $588001 3-5years
Buildings and building improvements . ... ... ... . .. 153,037 164,058 7-35 years
Land and land improvements . .. ......... ... ... ... ... 19,580 19,875
782,571 771,834
Less: Accumulated depreciation . . ...... ... ... (642,550)  (539,645)

$ 240,021 $ 232,289

Machinery and equipment includes capitalized leases of $164,000 as of December 27, 2002, and $2,371,000 as of December 28,
2001. Buildings and building improvements include capitalized leases of $14,477,000 as of December 27, 2002, and $14,548,000 as
of December 28, 2001. Accumulated depreciation includes accumulated amortization on capitalized leases of $4,241,000 as of
December 27, 2002, and $5,951,000 as of December 28, 2001.

Depreciation of property, plant, and equipment is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related
assets. Depreciation expense was $69,065,000 in 2002, $79,113,000 in 2001, and $89,147,000 in 2000.

The Company performs an impairment analysis of its property, plant, and equipment whenever significant events or changes in
circumstances occur that indicate the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment is evaluated based on a comparison of
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the carrying value of the asset to the undiscounted future cash flows associated with the asset. If an impairment is identified, the asset
is written down to its estimated fair value based on a discounted cash flow model.

EQUITY INVESTMENTS

The Company has made minority equity investments in privately-held companies from time to time. These investments were accounted
for as cost-method investments based on the Company’'s ownership and control of the investees, and were subject to a quarterly
impairment analysis. Impairment charges were recognized within selling, general, and administrative expense (SG&A) to the extent that
a decline in the value of the investment was determined to be other than temporary in nature. Losses included within SG&A associated
with equity investments were $4,515,000 in 2002, $12,047,000 in 2001, and $0 in 2000.

The Company received an interest in a publicly-traded company as a result of a merger. Investments in publicly- traded companies are
reported at fair market value based on their guoted market prices. Unrealized gains and losses on these investments are reported, net of
taxes, as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (OCI). Gains and losses on investments are recognized
within SG&A when realized.

AcCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE IncOME (LOSS)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes, consists of the following (in thousands):

2002 2001
Unrealized gain on marketable securities . .. ....... ... .. .. ... ... ... $ 2280 $§ —
Foreign currency hedging contracts . ............ ... . .. (11,864) 7,642

$ (9,584) $7,642

GoopwiLL

The Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” on the
first day of the Company’s fiscal year 2002. Goodwill is no longer amortized, but instead is tested for impairment on an annual basis or
as circumstances change. In the second quarter of 2002, the Company completed the initial goodwill impairment test. No accounting
charge resulted from the completion of this initial impairment test.

The following table presents the adjusted net income and earnings per share had SFAS No. 142 been in effect for all periods presented
(in thousands, except per share amounts):

2002 2001 2000

Reported netincome (10SS) .. ... .. . $110,031 $67,207 $(1,782)
Add back: Goodwill amortization . . . . ........ ... ... ... L. — 5,803 6,091
Adjusted net income . .. ... L $110,031 $73,010 $ 4,309
Basic earnings (loss) per common share:

Basic, asreported ... ... ... ... $ 105 $ 065 $ (0.02

Goodwill amortization . ... ... ... — 0.06 0.06

Basic, as adjusted . .. ....... ... .. $§ 105 $ 071 $ 004
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share:

Diluted, asreported .. ... ... ... ... .. $ 102 $ 064 § (0.02

Goodwill amortization . . ..., ... ... ... — 0.06 0.06

Diluted, as adjusted . .. ... ... ... .. ... $§ 102 $ 070 $ 0.04

Goodwill is included within other assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company had approximately $7,885,000 of goodwill
as of December 27, 2002, and $7,407,000 as of December 28, 2001.

TRansLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The functional currency for StorageTek’s foreign subsidiaries is the U.S. dollar, reflecting the significant volume of intercompany
transactions and associated cash flows that result from the fact that the majority of the Company’s storage products sold worldwide
are manufactured in Puerto Rico, a territory of the United States. Accordingly, monetary assets and liabilities are translated at year-end
exchange rates, while non-monetary items are translated at historical exchange rates. Revenue and expenses are transiated at the
average exchange rates in effect during the year, except for cost of revenue, depreciation, and amortization, which are transiated at
historical exchange rates during the year. The impact of such translations is reported in the Consolidated Statements of Operations
when incurred. See Note 5 for additional information with respect to the Company’s accounting policies for financial instruments
utilized in its foreign currency hedging program.
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CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The Company is exposed to credit risk associated with cash investments, foreign currency derivatives, and trade receivables. The
Company does not believe that its cash investments and foreign currency derivatives present significant credit risks, because the
counterparties to the instruments consist of major financial institutions, and the Company manages the notional amount of contracts
entered into with any one counterparty. Substantially all trade receivabie balances are unsecured. The concentration of credit risk with
respect to trade receivabies is limited by the large number of customers in the Company’s customer base and their dispersion across
various industries and geographic areas. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and maintains an
allowance for potential credit losses.

Stock-BaSED GCOMPENSATION PLANS

The Company's stock-based compensation plans are described in Note 10. The Company accounts for those plans under the
recognition and measurement principles of Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees,” and the related Interpretations. Stock-based compensation cost related to restricted stock is reflected in net income. No
stock-based compensation cost related to stock options is reflected in net income, as all options granted under those plans have an
exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant.

The following table illustrates the effect on net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per share if the Company had applied the fair value
recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” to stock-based compensation:

2002 2001 2000

Net income (loss), asreported ... ... ... $110,031 $67,207 $ (1,782)
Add: Stock-based compensation expense included in reported net

income, net of related tax effects ... ........... ... ... .. .. 2,279 1,825 1,502
Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expense determined under fair

vajue based method for all awards, net of related tax effects ... .. (22,199)  (26,023) (15,026)
Pro forma netincome (l0sS) ... ... .. ... .l $ 90,111  $43109 $(15,306)
Earnings (loss) per share:

Basic,asreported . . ... ... .. $ 105 § 065 $ (002

Basic,proforma . ....... ... ... .. 0.86 0.42 (0.15)

Diluted, as reported . . ... ... . ... . ... ... $ 1.02 $ 064 $ (0.02

Diluted, proforma . ... ... . ... ... .. L 0.85 0.41 (0.15)

The fair value of options granted under the stock-based compensation plans is estimated on the grant date using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions and resuits:

2002 2001 2000

Dividend vield . .......... . ... . .. . ... ... 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Volatility .. ... o 50.3-64.0% 64.4-78.6% 72.4-74.2%
Risk-free interestrate. . . ... . ... ... ... ... ... . ... ... 1.8-40% 4.0-62% 5.9-6.2%
Expected life (in years):

Options ... ... o 4.0 41 4.4

Purchase Planrights .. ...... ... .. ... ... ... ..... 0.5 0.5 0.5
Weighted average fair value:

Options . . ... .. . $ 1177 § 684 § 754

Purchase Planrights . ... ... ... ... . ... .. .. ... . ... $ 594 $ 373 $ 965

Iucome TAXES

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the expected tax consequences of temporary differences between the
financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities, using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are
expected to reverse. The Company records a valuation allowance to reduce the deferred tax assets to the amount that the Company
believes will more likely than not be realized.
ReseancH AMD ProoucT DEVELOPMENT COSTS

Research and product development casts are expensed as incurred.
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ApverTisig CosSTS

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs were $11,957,000 in 2002, $7,298,000 in 2001, and $5,476,000 in
2000.

RECLASSIFICATIONS
Certain prior year information has been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Obligations Associated with
the Retirement of Long-Lived Assets.” This statement addresses the accounting for the recognition and measurement of an asset
retirement abligation and its associated asset retirement cost. SFAS No. 143 is effective for the Company’s financial statements for the
year ending December 26, 2003. The adoption of this statement is not currently anticipated to have a material impact on the
Company’s financial condition or results of operations.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” This statement
addresses the accounting for costs assaciated with an exit activity or with a disposal of fong-lived assets. SFAS No. 146 is effective for
the Company’s financial statements for the year ending December 26, 2003. The adoption of this statement is not currently anticipated
to have a material impact on the Company’s financial condition or results of operations.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45 (FIN 45), “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.” FIN 45 requires that a liability be recorded in the guarantor’s
balance sheet upon issuance of a guarantee. FIN 45 also requires additional disclosures about the guarantees an entity has issued,
including a rollforward of the entity’s product warranty liabilities. The Company will apply the recognition provisions of FIN 45
prospectively to guarantaes issued or modified after December 31, 2002. The disclosure requirements are effective for the Company’s
financial statements for the vear ending December 27, 2002. The Company is currently evaluating the potential impact that the
recognition provisions of FIN 45 will have on its consclidated financial condition and resuits of operations.

In November 2002, the Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) issued EITF Issue No. 00-21, “Accounting for Revenue Arrangements with
Multiple Deliverabies.” EITF Issue No. 00-21 addresses fiow to determine whether a revenue arrangement involving muitiple
deliverables contains miore than one unit of accounting for the purposes of revenue recognition and how the revenue arrangement
consideration shouid bs measured and allocated to the separate units of accounting. EITF issue No. G0-21 applies to all revenue
arrangements that the Company enters into after June 27, 2003. The adoption of this statement is not currently anticipated to have a
material impact on the Company’s financial condition or results of operations.

in December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure.” This
statement amends SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” to provide alternative methods of transition for a
voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based compensation. It also amends the disclosure provisions
of that statement and requires disclosure of the pro forma effect in interim financial statements. SFAS No. 148 is effective for the
Company’s fiscal year ended December 27, 2002. The Company does not currently plan to change to the fair value method of
accounting for its stock-based compensation; therefore, the Company anticipates that the adoption of this statement will not have a
material impact on its financial condition or results of operations.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46 (FIN 46), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” FIN 46 provides guidance
on how to identify a variable interest entity (VIE) and determine when the assets, liabilities, and resuits of operations of a VIE need to be
included in a company’s consolidated financial statements. FIN 46 also requires additional disclosures by primary beneficiaries and
other significant variable interest holders in a VIE. The provisions of FIN 46 are effective immediately for all VIES created after
January 31, 2003. For VIEs created before February 1, 2003, the provisions of FIN 46 must be adopted at the beginning of the first
interim or annua reporting period beginning after June 15, 2003. While the Company is currently evaluating the potential impact of the
adoption of FIN 46, the Company believes that it will not be subject to the consolidation or disclosure requirements of FIN 46.

NOTE 3-—AGREEMENTS WITH EDS

On March 29, 2002, StorageTek and Electronic Data Systems Corporation (EDS) entered info a ten-year master secondary storage
services agreement under which EDS outsourced to StorageTek certain tape storage services for certain EDS-operated data center
sites within the United States. On April 1, 2002, StorageTek and EDS entered into a ten-year agreement under which StorageTek
outsourced certain infernal information technology and customer call center aperations to EDS. There are no cross-default provisions
between the two agreements, and performance under each agreement by both StorageTek and EDS is not contingent upon
performance under the other agreement. These agreements have been accounted for individually at their estimated fair values
consistent with the provisions of APB Opinion No. 29, “Accounting for Nonmonetary Transactions,” based on management’'s
gstimates of fair value. These estimates were confirmed with a third-party appraisal.
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In connection with the secondary storage services agreement, StorageTek purchased certain tape storage equipment from EDS for a
purchase price of $52,200,000. Substantially all of the purchase price paid to EDS relates to equipment previously sold by StorageTek
to EDS; however, none of the equipment purchased by StorageTek was sold to EDS subsequent to the companies entering into
definitive negotiations of the secondary storage services agreement. The purchase price of $52,200,000 paid to EDS for the secondary
storage equipment has been recorded within Property, Plant, and Equipment on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The Company is
depreciating the equipment on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Useful lives were determined based on
the individual characteristics of the equipment, and range from one to seven years.

NOTE 4—INCOME TAXES
Income {loss) before income taxes consists of the following (in thousands):

2002 2001 2000
United States. . . .. ... .. . $124,338 § 84,126 $(29,420)
International . .. ... ... ... 21,993 17,681 26,679

$146,331 $101,807 § (2,741)

The benefit (provision} for income taxes attributable to the amounts shown above consists of the following (in thousands):

2002 2001 2000
Current tax benefit (provision):
US.federal ... .. $(24,600) $(50,600) $(17,541)
US.state. .. ... (2,200) 1,600 1,000
Intermational . ... ... ... . ... (5,900 (9,800) (13,200)
(32,700)  (58,800) (29,741)
Deferred tax benefit (provision):
US. federal ... ... ... (3,100) 23,000 27,100
US.state. ... (1,000) (1,000 2,600
International .. ... ... 500 2,200 1,000

(3,600) 24200 30,700
$(36,300) $(34,600) § 959

The benefit (provision) for income taxes attributable to income before income taxes includes benefits of $347,000 in 2002,
$11,704,000 in 2001, and $23,783,000 in 2000 from the utilization of net operating loss carryforwards.

The deferred income tax balances on the Consolidated Balance Sheets consist of the following (in thousands):

2002 2001
Deferred income tax assets, net of valuation allowance:
CUITeNt . . $ 99,246 $ 95,459
NONCUITENE . . o o e 114,002 121,826
Net deferred income tax asset . ............. .. ... ... ... $213,248 $217,285
The Company’s net deferred income tax assets consist of the following (in thousands):
2002 2001
Gross deferred income tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards . .. ........ ... ... . ... ... . . ... $ 22336 $ 30,194
Tax credits ... .. 83,625 94,222
Other accrued liabilities and reserves .. ... . ... ... . . .. ... 47,496 41,950
IVENTOrY COSIS . . . .o 29,057 35,297
Deferred intercompany profit . . ... .. ... ... .. ... 10,060 8,406
Other . 43,422 28,037
235,996 238,106
Less: Valuation allowance . ... .. e (22,748)  (20,821)
Net deferred income tax asset . . ... ... ... ... $213,248 $217,285
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The net change in the valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets was an increase of $1,927,000 in 2002. The valuation
allowance relates primarily to foreign net operating loss carryforwards. The Company evaluates a variety of factors in determining the
amount of deferred income tax assets to be recognized pursuant to SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” including the
Company’s earnings history, the number of years the Company’s operating loss and tax credits can be carried forward, and future
taxable income expectations by tax jurisdiction.

For tax return purposes, the Company has available foreign net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $47,164,000 as of
December 27, 2002, which have an indefinite carryforward period. The Company also has general business credit carryforwards of
approximately $55,000,000, which begin to expire in 2008, and alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards of approximately
$28,000,000, which have an indefinite carryforward period. The Company also has a tax incentive grant, which expires in 2018, that
reduces the tax rate on its operations in Puerto Rico.

StorageTek has not provided for taxes on cumulative undistributed earnings of non-U.S. subsidiaries because such earnings are either
permanently reinvested or the associated tax liability would not exceed available foreign tax credits. At December 27, 2002, the
Company had approximately $249,846,000 of earnings permanently reinvested in subsidiaries outside the U.S.

The benefit (provision) for income taxes differs from the amount computed by applying the U.S. federal income tax rate of 35% to
income before income taxes for the following reasons (in thousands):

2002 2001 2000
U.S. federal income tax benefit (provision) at statutory rate .. ... . ... $(51,215) $(35,632) $ 959
(Increase) decrease in income taxes resulting from:
Effect of Puerto Rico operations . . . ............. ... ..... 12,654 6,000 7,700
Favorable resolution of prior year tax audits . . . ... ............ 10,500 — —
Nondeductible and otheritems . .. ... ... ... .. ... ..... (5,207) (2,452) (4,814)
Utilization of current vear tax credits ... .......... ... ... ... 3,963 3,366 4,217
Foreign tax rate and exchange rate differentials . .. . ... ......... (3,914) 1,391 (1,655)
State income taxes, net of federal benefits ... ... . ......... .. (3,216) (72) 3,176
Recognized (unrecognized) net operating losses, future deductions,
anderedits . ... ... 135 (7,201)  (8,624)
Benefit (provision) for income taxes . ................ ... .... $(36,300) $(34,600) $ 959

NOTE 5—DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

A significant portion of the Company’s revenue is generated by its international operations. As a result, the Company’s financial
condition, results of operations, and cash flows can be materially affected by changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The
Company attempts to mitigate this exposure as part of its foreign currency hedging program. The primary goal of the Company’s
foreign currency hedging program is to reduce the risk of adverse foreign currency movements on the reported financial results of its
non-U.S. dollar transactions. To operate this hedging program, the Company uses a combination of foreign currency forwards and
foreign currency options. The Company does not believe that these derivatives present significant credit risks, because the
counterparties to the derivatives consist of major financial institutions, and the Company manages the notional amount of contracts
gntered into with any one counterparty. The Company does not enter into derivative transactions for trading or speculative purposes.

Casy FLow HEDGES

The Company attempts to mitigate the risk that forecasted cash flows associated with revenue denominated in foreign currencies may
be adversely affected by changes in foreign currency exchange rates through a combination of foreign currency options and foreign
currency forwards. Typically, the maximum length of time over which the Company hedges its exposure to the variability of forecasted
cash flows is 18 months. The Company's derivatives used for hedging forecasted cash flows had a notional amount of $442,377,000
as of December 27, 2002, and $342,715,000 as of December 28, 2001.

The Company records these derivatives designated as cash flow hedges at their estimated fair value within other current assets or ather
current liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The gains and losses associated with changes in the fair value of the derivatives
are included within OCI to the extent that the derivatives are effective in offsetting changes in the value of the forecasted cash flows
being hedged. The gains and losses are then reclassified as an adjustment to revenue in the same period that the related forecasted
revenue is recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations
related to reclassification adjustments were a toss of $9,539,000 in 2002, and a gain of $11,515,000 in 2001. If a derivative is
terminated or discontinued as a hedge, the effective portion of gains and losses to that date is deferred in OCI and subsequently
recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Operations in the same period that the related forecasted revenue is recognized. The
ineffective portion of the derivatives is immediately recognized as a component of SG&A in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.
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As of December 27, 2002, all $11,864,000 of the net estimated losses associated with cash flow hedges included within OCI is
expected to be reclassified into revenue during the next 12 months.

The fair value of the Company's foreign currency forward contracts used as cash flow hedges is determined utilizing forward rates. The
forward rates are defined as the sum of the forward points as quoted by independent quote services and the spot rates as of the end of
the fiscal period. This same methodology is used to assess hedge effectiveness for these forward contracts. There was no material
hedge ineffectiveness associated with forward contracts during 2002 or 2001.

The fair value of the Company’s foreign currency options used as cash flow hedges is determined based on a Black-Scholes option
pricing model. These options are considered perfectly effective hedges based on the currencies, notional amounts, pricing, and
maturity of the options utilized by the Company, consistent with guidance provided by the Derivatives Implementation Group of the
FASB in June 2001. Accordingly, the Company records all of the changes in the options’ fair value, including changes in the time value
of the options, in OCI.

OTHER HEDGES

The Company also utilizes foreign currency forwards, generally with durations of less than two months, to reduce its exposure to
foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations in connection with monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. The
Company accounts for these derivatives in accordance with SFAS No. 52, “Foreign Currency Translation.” The Company records these
forwards at their estimated fair value within other current assets or other current liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Changes
in the fair value of these derivatives are immediately recognized as a component of SG&A in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.
The notional amount of outstanding foreign currency forwards utilized to reduce the Company’s exposure to foreign currency rate
fluctuations in connection with monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies was approximately $221,450,000 as
of December 27, 2002, and $207,954,000 as of December 28, 2001. The Company uses the same methodology for determining the
fair value of these foreign currency forwards as the methaodology used for valuing its forward contracts utilized as cash flow hedges.

NOTE 6—CREDIT FACILITIES, DEBT, AND LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The Company entered into a $150,000,000 revolving credit facility (the Revolver) in October 2001 that expires in October 2004. The
interest rates for borrowing under the Revolver are dependent on the Company’s Total Debt to rolling four quarter Earnings Before
Interest Expense, Taxes, Depreciation, and Amortization (EBITDA) ratio and the term of the outstanding borrowing. The rate ranges
from the applicable LIBOR pius 1.75% to 2.50% or the agent bank’s base rate pius 0.00% to 0.50%. The Company pays a 0.50% per
annum commitment fee on any unused borrowings. The Company had no outstanding borrowings under the Revolver as of
December 27, 2002. The Revolver is secured by the Company’s U.S. accounts receivable and U.S. inventory, and contains certain
financial and other covenants, including restrictions on the payment of cash dividends on the Company’s common stock.

The Company had a financing agreement with a bank that provided for the sale of promissory notes in the principal amount of up to
$75,000,000 at any one time. This agreement expired in January 2002, and all outstanding promissory notes under the agreement
were repaid at that time.

Long-term debt, including capitalized lease cbligations, consists of the following (in thousands):

2002 2001
Capitalized lease obligations . . . . . . . ... ... . ... . .. $11,134  $10,320
Other . .. — 15
11,134 10,335
Less: Current portion . . ... . ... (773) (812)

$10,361 § 9,523
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SCHEDULED CAPITAL AND QPERATING LEASE OBLIGATIONS
Scheduled maturities of capital and operating lease obligations as of December 27, 2002, are as follows (in thousands):

Capitalized  Noncanceliable

Lease Operating Lease
Obtligations Obligations
2008 . $ 1,616 $ 32,350
2004 . 1,608 24,417
2005 1,606 17,978
2006 . .. 1,605 14,138
2007 1,605 11,731
Thereafter . .. . . 8,026 10,936
16,066 $111,550
Less: Amount representing interest . .. ... ... ... ... ... (4,932)
Present value of capitalized lease obligations (including $773 classified as
CUITBNE) . o $11,134

Rent expense associated with operating leases was $40,080,000 in 2002, $44,463,000 in 2001, and $52,038,000 in 2000. Operating
leases primarily relate to office and equipment leases.

NOTE 7—ACCRUED LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):

2002 2001
Deferred revenus . .. . . . . $100,292 $ 77,066
Accrued payroll and commissions . . ... ... ... L. e 50,539 52,446
Accrued warranty reServe . . ... ... 41,155 34,242
Deferred compensation . . ... .. . 34,119 30,094
Other. . . 195,406 167,265

$421,511  $361,113

QOther accrued liabilities cansist of items that are individually less than 5% of total accrued liabilities.

NOTE 8—LITIGATION

The Company is involved in a number of pending legal proceedings that arise from time to time in the ordinary course of business.
Management believes that any liability as a result of adverse outcomes in such proceedings would not have a material adverse effect on
the financial condition of the Company taken as a whole. However, the outcome of these actions is inherently difficult to predict. In the
event of an adverse outcome, the ultimate potential loss could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition or
reported results of operations in a particular quarter. An unfavorable decision, particularly in patent litigation, could require material
changes in production processes and products or result in the Company’s inability to ship products or components found to have
violated third-party patent rights.

MOTE 9—CEARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE

Earnings (loss) per common share (EPS) is computed using SFAS No. 128, “Earnings Per Share.” Basic EPS is computed by dividing
net income (loss) by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS reflects the potential
dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common shares.

38




The computations of the basic and diluted EPS amounts are as foliows (in thousands, except per share amounts):

2002 2001 2000
Netincome (10SS) . .. ... ... $110,031 $ 67,207 $ (1,782)
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic. .. ... ... .. 105,108 103,143 100,859
Effect of dilutive common stock equivalents . .. .... . ........ 2,329 1,786 —
Diluted . . ... .. 107,437 104,929 100,859
Earnings (loss) per common share:
BaSIC. . ... $ 105 § 065 $ (0.02
Diluted . . ... ... $ 102 $ 064 $ (0.02

Options to purchase 5,256,268 shares of common stock in 2002 and 5,788,621 shares of common stock in 2001 were excluded from
the computation of diluted earnings per share because the exercise price of the options was greater than the average market price of the
Company’s common stock and, therefore, the effect would have been antidilutive. Qptions to purchase 10,403,412 shares of common
stock in 2000 were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share because they were antidilutive as a result of the net
foss incurred in that period.

NOVE 10—EMPLOYEE BENEFIT AND STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS
PROFIT SHARING AND THRIFT PLAN

The Company has a Profit Sharing and Thrift Plan under which U.S. employees may contribute up to 50% of their compensation,
subject to certain Internal Revenue Code limitations. StorageTek provides a matching contribution equal to 100% of the first 3% of
compensation contributed by the participant, and 50% of the next 4% of compensation contributed by the participant, up to 2 maximum
match of 5% of the participant’s compensation each pay period. The Company made contributions to the Profit Sharing and Thrift Plan
of $13,674,000 in 2002, $14,061,000 in 2001, and $14,878,000 in 2000.

Svock Opmion PLANS

Under the 1993 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan (93 Plan), the Company is authorized to issue up to 900,000 shares of common stock
to eligible employees, excluding Company directors and officers. The plan provides for the issuance of common stock pursuant to
stock option exercises. As of December 27, 2002, the Company had 374,750 shares available for grant under the 93 Plan.

Under the 1995 Equity Participation Plan (95 Plan), the Company is authorized to issue up to 23,550,000 shares of commgn stock to
eligible employees. The plan provides for the issuance of common shares pursuant to stock option exercises, restricted stock grants,
and other equity-based awards. As of December 27, 2002, the Company had 9,498,998 shares available for grant under the 95 Plan.

Under the Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors (Director Plan), the Company is authorized to issue up to 1,560,000 shares of
common stock to non-employee directors. The Director Plan provides for the issuance of common shares pursuant to stock option
exercises. As of December 27, 2002, the Company had 467,668 shares available for grant under the Director Plan.

All of the Company’s stock option plans are stockholder-approved except for the 93 Plan. Stock options are granted under the plans
with an exercise price equal o the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant and generally vest over a
four-year period. Options may not be exercised prior to vesting. Options granted under the plans generally have a maximum contractual
term of ten years from the date of grant, and may be accelerated upon certain events, including death or disability.

The following table summarizes stock option activity under the Company’s plans:

2002 2001 2000

Weighted Weighted \ifeighted
Number of Average Number of Average Number of Average
Shares Under  Exercise  Shares Under  Exercise  Shares Under  Exercise

Option Price Option Price Option Price
Outstanding at beginning of year . ... ......... 10,393,763 $16.40 9,527,890 $19.47 12,354,593 $22.33
Granted. . ........... . ... . ... . ... .. 2,266,893 22.64 4,248 111 12.89 2,631,492 12.35
Exercised ... ...... ... .. . ... ... . ... ... (683,499) 13.38 (262,421)  13.59 (102,887) 8.77
Forfeited/Expired . .. .... ... ... ... . ..... (817,251)  19.80  (3,119,817) 21.23 (5,355,308) 22.82
Qutstanding atend of year . ................ 11,159,906 17.61 10,393,763 16.40 9,527,890 19.47
Exercisable atendofyear. .. ... ............ 5475189 $18.38 4,169,806 $19.24 4,888,150 $20.80
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The following table summarizes information concerning outstanding and exercisable stock options as of December 27, 2002:

Outstanding Exercisabie
Weighled
Average
Remaining Weighted Weighted
Range of Number of Coniractual Average Mumber of Average
Exercise Prices Oplions Life in Years  Exercise Price Oplions Exercise Price
$0-8%10 92,684 7.8 $ 9.43 34,596 $ 9.41
10- 20 6,714,327 74 13.45 3,155,169 13.92
20- 30 3,942,540 75 22.91 1,943,633 22.58
30 - 40 305,875 57 34.29 251,439 34.17
40 - 50 104,480 5.2 43.20 90,352 4317
11,159,906 7.3 $17.61 5,475,189 $18.38

Stock PURCHASE PLan

Under the 1987 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (Purchase Plan), the Company is authorized to issue up to 15,200,000 shares of
common stock to eligible employees. Under the terms of the Purchase Pian, employees may contribute up to 10% of their pay toward
the purchase of stock, subject to certain Internal Revenue Code limitations. The purchase price of the stock is equal to 85% of the lower
of the stock’s closing price on the first or last day of the six-month offering period. The following table shows the number of shares
issued under the Purchase Plan in each of the last three years;

2002 2001 2060
Shares issued under the Purchase Plan . .. ................. 923,632 1,568,197 1,522,028

As of December 27, 2002, the Company had an aggregate of 2,088,409 common shares reserved for issuance under the Purchase
Plan.

RESTRICTED STOCK

Restricted stock grants are made pursuant to the 95 Plan. These grants are generally issued to employees with a purchase price equal
to the par value of the Company’s common stock, with the restricted stock typically vesting over a four-year period. Restricted stock
vesting may be accelerated upon certain events, including death or disability. The following table provides information about restricted
stock under the Company’s plans:

2002 2001 2000
QOutstanding at beginning of year. . .. ........ ... ... ... ..... 571,520 875,522 339,680
Granted . . ... .. 277,503 120,000 790,202
Vested . . ... ... ... (198,041) (330,780) (161,357)
Forfeited. . . ... . (74,674) (93,222)  (93,003)
Qutstanding atend of year ... ... ... ... . ... ... . ... ... 576,308 571,520 875,522

Weighted average fair value of restricted stock granted during the year . $ 23.04 § 1162 §$ 12.28

The fair value of a share of restricted stock is calculated based on the market value of the Company’s common stock on the grant date,
and is deferred as unearned compensation in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The initial fair value is amortized ratably to
compensation expense over the vesting period, net of forfeitures.

In November 2000, the Company made an exchange offer to non-executive officer empioyees of the Company to exchange stock
options held by those employees for restricted stock. As a result of this offer, the Company issued 555,943 shares of restricted stock in
2000 in return for 2,223,772 stock options. The shares of restricted stock vest ratably over three years.

NOTE 11—BUSINESS SEGMENTS AND GEOGRAPHIC AREAS

BusINESS SEGMENTS

The Company is organized into two reportable business segments based on the definitions provided in SFAS No. 131, "Disclosures
about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information”; storage products and storage services. The storage products segment
includes sales of tape products, disk products, network products, and other miscellaneous products. The storage services segment
includes maintenance and support services, as well as professional services.
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The Gompany does not have any intersegment revenue, and segment operating performance is evaluated based on gross profit. The
aggregate gross profit by segment equals the consolidated gross profit, and the Company does not allocate research and product
development costs; selling, general and administrative expense; interest income; interest expense; or benefit (provision) for income
taxes to the segments. The following table shows revenue and gross profit by segment (in thousands):

2002 2001 2000
Revenue:
Storage products . ... ... ... L $1,275,941  $1,359,356 $1,411,932
Storage Services. . . ... ... .. 763,674 685,966 648,272
Total revenue . ... ... ... $2,039,615 $2,045,322 $2,060,204
Gross profit:
Storage products . ......... ... ... $ 575,135 $ 618,214 $ 595,083
Storage Services . . . .. ... ... 339,360 282 247 236,435
Total gross profit . .. ... .. .. .. ... ... $ 914,495 § 900,461 $ 831,518
The following table provides supplemental financial data regarding revenue from the Company's storage products segment (in
thousands):
2002 2001 2009
Tape products . .. .. ... $ 989,819 $1,099,666 $1,109,303
Diskproducts ... ... .. ... . .. . . 145,792 114,085 145,215
Network products . . . ...... ... ... ... . .. .. ... ... 88,533 67,713 49,714
Other . ..o 51,797 76,992 107,700
Total storage products revenue . ... ................ $1,275,941  $1,359,356  $1,411,932

All of the Company’s assets are retained and analyzed at the corporate level and are not allocated to the individual segments.
Depreciation and amortization expense is associated with corporate assets and is not separately identifiable within the repartable

segments.

GEOGRAPHIC AREAS

Revenue and long-lived assets by geographic area are based on the country in which the Company is legally transacting business.
Long-lived assets consist of property, piant, and equipment; capitalized software costs; and goodwill. Revenue and long-lived assets
for Europe are reported in aggregate, as there are no individual countries with revenue or long-lived assets that exceed 10% of the
consolidated amounts. Individual geographic areas other than the United States and Europe account for ess than 10% of the
consolidated revenue and long-lived assets, and are combined and shown in the tabie below as “Other.” Revenue and long-lived assets

for each geographic area are shown below (in thousands):

2002 2001 2000
Revenue:
United States(1) . . ... ... ... ... . ... .. $1,143,110 $1,138,456 $1,133,945
BUrOPE . o . e 654,035 621,680 632,660
Other ... . 242 470 285,186 293,599
Total revenue . ....... ... $2,039,615 $2,045,322 $2,060,204
Long-lived assets:
United States . .. . ... . $ 210451 $ 201,618 $ 238,881
BUMOPE . . 28,957 31,829 32,328
Other . ... 10,987 10,804 14,410
Total long-lived assets .. ................ .. .... $ 250395 $ 244251 $ 285619

(1) U.S. revenue from unaffiliated customers includes international export sales to customers of $110,395 in 2002, $128,541 in

2001, and $116,549 in 2000.
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NOTE 12—QUARTERLY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)
The consolidated results of operations on a quarterly basis were as follows (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Earnings (Loss)
Per Common Share

Revenue Gross Profit  Nel Income (Loss) Basic Diluted
2002
Firstquarter . ... ... $ 455,912  $195,691 $ 5,957 $006 $0.06
Second quarter. ... ... .. . 491,929 217,547 19,130 0.18 0.18
Third quarter . ... ... ... ... 501,705 228,185 23,870 0.23 0.22
Fourth quarter . ... ... .. ... ... ... . ... ....... 590,069 273,072 61,074 0.58 0.57
Total. . .. . $2,039,615 $914,495 $110,031 $1.05 $1.02(1)
2001
Firstquarter . . ... .. ... ... $ 468,819 $197,270 $ (3,004 $(0.03) $(0.03)
Second quarter. . ... ... ... ... 512,134 219,769 12,250 0.12 0.12
Third quarter . ... ... . . 487,999 222,027 17,915 0.17 0.17
Fourthquarter .. ...... ... ... ... ... ... ...... 566,370 261,395 40,046 0.39 0.38
Total . . ... . $2,045,322 $900,461 $ 67,207 $065 $0.64

(1) Earnings (loss) per common share (EPS) in each quarter is computed using the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during that quarter while EPS for the full year is computed using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
year. Therefore, the sum of the four quarters’ EPS does not equal the full year EPS.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IV AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES
None.
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PART !
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE COFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information concerning the Company’s directors required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the information set forth
under the caption “‘Proposal 1—£lection of Directors” in the Company’s definitive proxy statement relating to the annual meeting of
stockholders to be held May 21, 2003 (the 2003 Proxy Statement”’). The information concerning the Company’s executive officers
required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the information set forth under the caption “Executive Officers and Certain
Significant Employees of the Registrant,” in Item 4 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The information concerning compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, required by this ftem
is incorporated by reference to the information set forth under the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance”
in the 2003 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this ltem is incorporated by reference to the information under the captions “Compensation of Executive
Officers™ and “Director Compensation™ in the 2003 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The information required by this ltem is incorporated by reference to the information under the caption “Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management” in the 2003 Proxy Statement.

Information regarding securities authorized for issuance under equity compensatibn plans is incorporated by reference to the
information under the caption “Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans” in the 2003 Proxy Statement.
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this ltem is incorporated by reference to the information under the captions “Compensation of Executive
Officers,” “Director Compensation,” and “Indebtedness of Management” in the 2003 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 14. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the principal executive officer and principal financial officer,
the Company conducted an evaluation of its disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined under Rule 13a-14
promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, within 90 days of the filing date of this report. Based on their gvaluation, the
principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are
effective.

There have been no significant changes in the Company’s internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect these
controls subsequent to the date of the evaluation referenced above.
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PART v
ITEM 15. EXKIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
(@) The following documents are filed as a part of this report:

1. Financial Statements:

PAGE

Report of Independent Accountants . . .. . .. . .. 23
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 27, 2002, and December 28, 2001 . . ...... ... ... ... ... 24
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended December 27, 2002, December 28, 2001, and

December 29, 2000 . . . .. ... e 25
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 27, 2002, December 28, 2001, and

December 29, 2000 . . . .. . . . e 26
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for the Years Ended December 27, 2002,

December 28, 2001, and December 29, 2000 . . . . . .. .. . 27
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the Years Ended December 27, 2002,

December 28, 2001, and December 29, 2000 . . . . ... ... . . . 28
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements .. . .. ... ... . . . e 29

2. Financial Statement Schedules:

All schedules are omitted because they are not applicable, or the required information is included in the consolidated financial
statements or notes thereto.

3. Exhibits:

The exhibits listed below are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K or are incorporated by reference into this Annual Report
on Form 10-K:

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Storage Technology Corporation dated July 28, 1987 (previously filed as
Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 29, 2000, filed on
February 21, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference)

3.2 Certificate of Amendment dated May 22, 1989, to the Restated Certificate of Incorporation dated July 28, 1987
(previously filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 29, 2000, filed on February 21, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference)

3.3 Certificate of Second Amendment dated May 28, 1992, to the Restated Certificate of Incorporation dated July 28,
1987 (previousty filed as Exhibit to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 29, 2000, filed on February 21, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference)

3.4 Certificate of Third Amendment dated May 21, 1999, to the Restated Certificate of Incorporation dated July 28,
1987 (previously filed as Exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended
June 25, 1999, filed on August 9, 1999, and incorporated herein by reference)

3.5(2) Restated Bylaws of Storage Technology Corporation, as amended through November 16, 2002.

41 Specimen Certificate of Common Stock, $0.10 par value of Registrant (previously filed as Exhibit (c)(2) to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 2, 1989, and incorporated herein by reference)

10.1(1) Storage Technology Corporation Amended and Restated 1987 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended
(previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended
June 29, 2001, filed on August 9, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference)

10.2(1) Storage Technology Corporation Amended and Restated 1995 Equity Participation Plan (previously filed as
Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999, filed
on March 10, 2000, and incorporated herein by reference)

10.3(1) Storage Technology Corporation Management by Objective Bonus Pian (previously filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 30, 2001, filed on May 14, 2001,
and incorporated herein by reference)
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10.4(1)

10.5(1)

10.6(1)

10.7(1)

10.8(1)

10.9(1)

10.10(1)

10.11(1)

10.12(1)

10.13(1)

10.14(1)

10.15(1)

10.16(1)

10.17(1)

10.18(1)

10.19(1)

Storage Technology Corporation Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors (previously
filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 28,
1996, filed on August 12, 1996, and incorporated herein by reference)

Storage Technology Corporation Flexible Option Ptan, dated December 2001 (previously filed as Exhibit 10.5 to
the Company’'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 28, 2001, filed on March 4,
2002, and incorporated herein by reference)

Agreement between the Company and Gary Francis, dated August 19, 1997 (previously filed as Exhibit 10.25 to
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 26, 1997, filed on March 6,
1998, and incorporated herein by reference)

CEQ Employment Agreement, dated July 11, 2000, between the Company and Patrick J. Martin (previously filed
as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2000,
filed on August 11, 2000, and incorporated herein by reference)

Severance Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2001, between the Company and Robert S. Kocol (previously filed as
Exhibit 10.9 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 28, 2001,
filed on November 8, 2001, and incorporated hergin by reference)

Restricted Stock Award Agreement, dated as of September 27, 2001, by and between the Company and Robert
S. Kocol (previously filed as Exhibit 10.9 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 28, 2001, filed on March 4, 2002, and incorporated herein by reference)

Offer Letter, dated May 10, 2001, from the Company to Michael McLay (previously filed as Exhibit 10.17 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 29, 2001, filed on August 9, 2001,
and incorporated herein by reference)

Offer Letter, dated February 9, 2001, from the Company to Jill F Kenney (previously filed as Exhibit 10.19 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 30, 2001, filed on May 14, 2001,
and incorporated herein by reference)

Offer Letter, dated February 9, 2001, from the Company to Roger Gaston (previously filed as Exhibit 10.20 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 30, 2001, filed on May 14, 2001,
and incorporated herein by reference)

Promissory Note, dated May 11, 2001, from Michael McLay to the Company, in the principal amount of
$390,000 (previously filed as Exhibit 10.23 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal
quarter ended June 29, 2001, filed on August 9, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference)

Promissory Note, dated May 11, 2001, from Michae! Mclay to the Company, in the principal amount of
$160,000 (previously filed as Exhibit 10.24 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal
quarter ended June 29, 2001, filed on August 9, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference)

Form of LEAP Participation Agreement, dated April 30, 2001 (previously filed as Exhibit 10.25 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 29, 2001, filed on August 9, 2001, and
incorporated herein by reference)

Offer Letter, dated July 16, 2001, from the Company to Roy Perry (previously filed as Exhibit 10.28 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 28, 2001, filed on
November 8, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference)

Offer Letter, dated June 27, 2001, from the Company to Angel Garcia (previously filed as Exhibit 10.29 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 28, 2001, filed on
November 8, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference)

Offer Letter, dated December 10, 2001, between the Company and Thomas Major (previously filed as
Exhibit 10.20 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 28, 2001, filed
on March 4, 2002, and incorporated herein by reference)

Letter Agreement, dated July 31, 2001, between the Company and Pierre Cousin (previously filed as
Exhibit 10.21 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 28, 2001, filed
on March 4, 2002, and incorporated herein by reference)
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10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23(1)

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

Credit Agreement, dated as of October 10, 2001, among the Company, the several financial institutions thereto,
Bank of America, N.A., as letter of credit issuing bank and sole administrative agent for the Banks, Key Corporate
Capital, Inc. as Documentation Agent, Fleet National Bank as Syndication Agent, and Banc of America Securities
LLC as sole lead arranger and sole book manager (previously filed as Exhibit 10.13 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 28, 2001, filed on November 8, 2001, and
incorporated herein by reference)

Security Agreement, dated as of October 10, 2001, by and among the Company, Bank of America, N.A., as
Collateral Agent for itself and other Secured Parties referred to therein (previously filed as Exhibit 10.14 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 28, 2001, filed on
November 8, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference)

Guaranty, dated as of October 10, 2001, by StorageTek Holding Corporation, in favor of the Banks party to a
certain Credit Agreement and Bank of America, N.A., as Agent and Issuing Bank and Collateral Agent (previously
filed as Exhibit 10.15 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended

September 28, 2001, filed on November 8, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference)

Form of Executive Severance Agreement (previously filed as Exhibit 10.32 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 29, 2002, filed on May 13, 2002, and incorporated herein by
reference)

Master Services Agreement (MSA), between each of the Company, Electronic Data Systems Corporation, and
EDS Information Services L.L.C., dated as of April 1, 2002 (previously filed as Exhibit 10.33 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 29, 2002, filed on May 13, 2002, and
incorporated herein by reference)

Authorization Letter #1 pursuant to the MSA, dated April 1, 2002 (previously filed as Exhibit 10.34 to the
Company’s Guarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 29, 2002, filed on May 13, 2002,
and incorporated herein by reference)

Authorization Letter #2 pursuant to the MSA, dated April 1, 2002 (previously filed as Exhibit 10.35 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 29, 2002, filed on May 13, 2002,
and incorporated herein by reference)

Master Secondary Storage Services Agreement, between the Company and Electronic Data Systems Corporation,
dated March 29, 2002 (previously filed as Exhibit 10.36 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
fiscal quarter ended March 29, 2002, filed on May 13, 2002, and incorporated herein by reference)

Offer Letter, dated June 25, 2002, between the Company and Mark Roellig (previously filed as Exhibit 10.28 to
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 28, 2002, filed on August 12,
2002, and incorporated herein by reference)

Extension Agreement, dated August 28, 2002, between the Company and Pierre Cousin (previously filed as
Exhibit 10.29 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 27, 2002,
filed on November 12, 2002, and incorporated herein by reference)

Extension Agreement, dated September 30, 2002, between the Company and Pierre Cousin (previougly filed as
Exhibit 10.30 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 27, 2002,
filed on November 12, 2002, and incorporated herein by reference)

Form of Indemnification Agreement, dated as of November 22, 2002, between the Company and each director
Storage Technology Corporation 1993 Non-Statutory Stock Option Plan

Offer Letter, dated November 12, 2002, between the Company and Pierre Cousin

Agreement, dated December 1, 2002, between the Company and Pierre Cousin

Subsidiaries of Registrant

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002
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99.2(2) Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002

(1) Contract or compensatory plan or arrangement in which directors and/or officers participate
(2} Indicates exhibit filed with this Annual Report on Form 10-K

(b) Reports on Form 8-K.

Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on October 2, 2002, relating to an ltem 5, Other Events and Regulation FD Disclosure, regarding an
announcement by the Company of its decision to outsource development activities and the manufacturing of its StorageNet® 6000

Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on October 23, 2002, relating to an Item 5, Other Events and Regulation FD Disclosure, regarding an
announcement by the Company of its results of operations for the fiscal quarter ended September 27, 2002, including a copy of the
script of the prepared remarks of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer from a conference call regarding
such results of operation

Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on November 20, 2002, relating to an Iltem 9, Regulation FD Disclosure, regarding a webcast of the
Company’s Analyst Meeting, including a copy of the prepared slide presentation from such meeting
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
Dated: March 5, 2003 STORAGE TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION

By: /s/ PATRICK J. MARTIN

Chairman of the Board,
President, Chief Executive Officer,
and Director (Principal Executive Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on
behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE
/s/ PATRICK J. MARTIN Chairman of the Board, President, Chief Executive Officer, March 5. 2003
Patrick J. Martin and Director (Principal Executive Officer) '
/s RoBerT S. Kocol Corporate Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Robert S. Kocol (Principal Financial Officer) March 5, 2003
/s/ THOMAS G. ARNOLD Vice President and Corporate Controller (Principal
Thomas G. Arnold Accounting Officer) March 3, 2003
s/ JAMES R. ADAMS
s Director March 5, 2003
James R. Adams
s/ CHARLES E. FOSTER
& Director March 5, 2003
Charles E. Foster
/s/ DENNIS H. JONES )
- Director March 5, 2003

Dennis H. Jones
/s/ WitLiam T. KERR .

— Director March 5, 2003
William T. Kerr
s/ ROBERT E. LA Branc
A Director March 5, 2003
Robert E. La Blanc
s/ ROBERT E. LEE
Al Director March 5, 2003
Robert E. Lee
s/ RICHARD C. STEADMAN
s Director March 5, 2003

Richard C. Steadman
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CERTIFICATIONS
{, Patrick J. Martin, certify that;
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Storage Technology Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information refating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to
the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

¢) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures
based on our gvaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and | have disclosed, based on our maost recent evaluation, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors {(or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the registrant’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the registrant’s auditors any
material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal controts; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and | have indicated in this annual report whether there were significant changes in
internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent
evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: March 5, 2003

/s/ PaTRICK J. MARTIN

Patrick J. Martin
Chairman, President and CEO
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[, Robert S. Kocol, certify that:
1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Storage Technology Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any unirue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annua! report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, resuits of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this annual report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to
the filing date of this annual report (the “‘Evaluation Date™); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures
based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controfs which could adversely affect the registrant’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the registrant’s auditors any
material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal controls; and

The registrant’s other certifying officers and | have indicated in this annual report whether there were significant changes in
internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent
evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: March 5, 2003

/s/ RoBerT S. KocoL

Robert S. Kocol
Corporate Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
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corporate information

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

James R. Adams
Former Chairman
Texas Instruments Inc.

Charles E. Foster

Former Chairman, President

& Chief Executive Officer
Prodigy Communications Corp.

Dennis H. Jones
President
DHJ Group

Wiiliam 7. Kerr
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
Meredith Corporation

Robert E. La Blanc
President
Robert E. La Blanc Associates Inc.

RobertE. Lee
President
Glacier Praperties Inc.

Patrick J. Martin

Chairman of the Board, President
& Chief Executive Officer
StorageTek

Richard C. Steadman
Private Investor

Annual Meeting

The annual meeting of stockholders
will be held at 10 a.m. (EDT)

on May 21, 2003, at the

W Hotel

111 Perimeter Center West

Atlanta, Georgia 30346 USA

Corporate information/Form 10-K
A copy of the StorageTek 2002
Annual Report on Form 10-K
can be obtained without cost
by writing to:

Investor Relations

StorageTek

One StorageTek Drive
Louisville, Colorado 80028-4315
1.800.785.2217
ask_stk@storagetek.com

internet

StorageTek's home page contains information
on the Company, products, technology,
partnerships, news releases, financial
information, SEC filings and an electronic
version of our 2002 Annual Report.

All information can be found at
www.storagetek.com.

Exchange Listing
Common Stock

New York Stock Exchange
Symbol: STK

independent Accountants
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Denver, Colorado

Transfer Agent

Stockholders with address changes,
transfers, exchanges of stock
certificates, or other similar
inquiries should contact:

American Stock Transfer & Trust Co.
59 Maiden Lane

New York, New York 10038
1.800.937.5449

info@amstock.com
www.amstock.com
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